
COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSHOP October 3, 2016 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a Council Workshop of the North Mankato City 
Council was held in the Municipal Building Council Chambers on October 3, 2016. Mayor Dehen 
called the meeting to order at 5 :30 p.m. asking that everyone join in the Pledge of Allegiance. The 
following were present for roll call: Mayor Dehen, Council Members Steiner, Freyberg and Spears, 
Finance Director McCann, Public Works Director Swanson and City Clerk Van Genderen. Absent: 
City Administrator Harrenstein. Council Member Norland joined the meeting at 5: 3 6 p.m. 

Discussion of 2017 Proposed Budget and 2017-2021 Capital Improvement Plan. 
Finance Director McCann stated the CIP is a flexible planning tool that is reviewed and 

updated on an annual basis. Major projects and equipment purchases over $15,000 are incorporated 
into the plan. He indicated the City is expanding the CIP from a 5 year plan to a 10 year plan to help 
minimize fluctuations in the budget and create orderly replacement of facilities, infrastructure and 
equipment. The CIP is used to inform the public of future projects and establishes priorities and 
funding oflargescale projects and equipment. Finance Director McCann reported development of the 
CIP includes City staff and City Council discussion using a ranking system to prioritize potential 
projects. 

1 

Finance Director McCann reviewed several projects/purchases planned for 2017 including 
$80,000 to purchase public works equipment, $40,000 for a Police Department squad car, $50,000 for 
renovations to the Police Community Room and Finance and Community Development, $15,000 for a 
large printer for the Community Development department, $345,000 to fund the Parks Plan and 
$400,000 for the Pavement Management Plan. Also included in the 2017 budget are space needs 
analysis for the Public Works building and Spring Lake Swim Facility. 

Finance Director McCann stated Council would spend the remaining time reviewing and 
prioritizing projects. Council Member Freyberg indicated his personal view on what should be 
included in the CIP. He recommended raising the $15,000 maximum that can be spent without being 
included in the CIP as these items should be managed by the Staff. He also recommended not 
including maintenance items, as maintenance should come out of operations. He provided a brief All 
Seasons Arena (ASA) update as an example of financial management. He stated the ASA created 
three funds with their reserve budget and in 2016 were able to purchase a Zamboni for $120,000, pay 
$28,000 for street assessments and $60,000 for parking lot improvements. The ASA board was able to 
complete this without approaching the owners for additional revenue due to prudent management. He 
stated the City should strive to minimize peaks and valleys in the budget and manage smaller items and 
maintenance with the general fund, saving the capital improvement plan for big projects. Finance 
Director McCann stated funding sources for the projects/purchases will be included and some of them 
are in the general fund but items must be amortized and depreciated. Council Member Spears stated 
the CIP serves to provide transparency. Council Member Frey berg stated all of the information is 
included in the budget and it would be simpler if it was not also reviewed in the CIP. Mayor Dehen 
indicated Council should consider raising the $15,000 maximum that can be spent without being 
included in the CIP to reduce micromanagement and trusting City staff to make wise decisions. 

Discussion was held on Caswell Park projects. Council Members Spears and Steiner expressed 
concern that they did not have information regarding how Caswell projects would impact the operating 
budget. Finance Director McCann indicated all Caswell projects would have an impact on the 
operating budget. Mayor Dehen stated Caswell Park projects were also contingent upon passage of the 
local option sales tax. Council Member Norland stated funding from other groups and donors would 
also need to be taken into consideration. Council Member Frey berg indicated there were always joint 
power possibilities also. Mayor Dehen stated the Caswell Park projects should be held for 2026. 



COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSHOP October 3, 2016 

Discussion was held on Benson Park Shelter and Restroom, Benson Park north parking lot, 
Benson Park linear pond bridge and Spring Lake park restroom facility proposed for 2017. Council 
Members Steiner, Norland, Freyberg and Spears and Mayor Dehen agreed the projects should remain 
on the CIP for completion in 2017. 

2 

The Lady Bug Trail bridge was discussed for completion in 2018 or 2019. A trail from Mary 
Lane to Lake Street was discussed with concerns about trail stability and maintenance. Agreement was 
made to move the project out to 2019 or later and possibly combine it with another project. 
Development of neighborhood splash pads was discussed with Council Member's Spears and Norland 
and Mayor Dehen advocating for environmental studies to determine the impact of the project on water 
usage. 

A trail along Lookout Drive was discussed with Public Works Director Swanson providing two 
options that could be studied to determine feasibility. City Engineer Sarff indicated building a trail up 
Lookout Drive has regional appeal and the City should consider applying for a federal grant that would 
cover 80% of the cost. Money would not be available for 5 to 6 years. Council directed staff to 
proceed with beginning the grant application. 

Discussion was held concerning proceeding with I&l investigation and lining repairs. Council 
Member Spears requested clarification on the importance and cost of l&I lining repairs. Public Works 
Director Swanson stated there would be significant return on the l&I lining repairs. Finance Director 
McCann stated the proposed sewer rate increase would cover the debt service payment on the l&I 
repairs if the City bonded $1.5 million. 

Finance Director McCann stated a Public Works Facility study was budgeted for 2017. 
Council Member Spears indicated he did not believe the City should pay for a study, rather the City 
should be able to manage the study and building without additional engineering studies. Public Works 
Director Swanson stated the Public Works building is constructed on a closed dump and there are 
significant environmental issues that must be taken into consideration and City staff is not qualified to 
manage those risks. He also stated the City must consider the 50 year outlook for the property and the 
projected needs. 

Discussion was held on the Belgrade Avenue street and sidewalk beautification project, 
Commerce Drive street redevelopment and Public Works building project. All three projects were left 
for future consideration. 

The Spring Lake Park swim facility was discussed and it was determined to consider the filter 
upgrades, diving well upgrades and slide feature as one larger facility upgrade and earmark it for future 
consideration. 

Finance Director McCann indicated Council had narrowed the list to six projects. Benson Park 
shelter, Benson Park parking, Spring Lake Park restroom, Benson Park linear bridge, Lookout Drive 
trail and I&! lining repairs. 

Finance Director McCann stated that during the next council meeting the Council will be 
considering approving a debt policy. The policy under consideration will set a maximum G.O. debt 
ratio of3%, the City currently has a debt ratio of2.57%. The debt policy will also consider G.0. debt 
less revenue debt. The current G.O. debt less revenue ratio is 1.46% and the proposed debt policy 
target is 2% 

There being no fmther business, on a motion by Council Member Steiner, seconded by Council 
Member Norland, the meeting adjourned at 6:30 p.m. 



COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSHOP October 3, 2016 3 

Mayor 

City Clerk 



COUNCIL MINUTES October 3, 2016 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the North Mankato City Council 
was held in the Municipal Building Council Chambers on October 3, 2016. Mayor Dehen called the 
meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. asking that everyone join in the Pledge of Allegiance. The following 
were present for roll call: Mayor Dehen, Council Members Norland, Freyberg, Spears and Steiner, 
Finance Director McCann, Attorney Kennedy, City Planner Fischer, Public Works Director Swanson 
and City Clerk Van Genderen. Absent: City Administrator Harrenstein. 

Approval of Agenda 
Council Member Norland moved, seconded by Council Member Steiner, to approve the 

agenda as presented. Vote on the motion: Norland, Freyberg, Spears, Steiner and Dehen aye; no 
nays. Motion carried. 

Approval of Council Meeting Minutes 
Council Member Steiner moved, seconded by Council Member Norland to approve the 

minutes of the Council meeting of September 19, 2016. Vote on the motion: Norland, Frey berg, 
Spears, Steiner and Dehen aye; no nays. Motion carried. 

Consent Agenda 
Council Member Steiner moved, seconded by Council Member Norland, to approve the 

Consent Agenda which included: 
A. Bills and Appropriations. 

Vote on the motion: Norland, Freyberg, Spears, Steiner and Dehen aye; no nays. Motion 
carried. 

Public Comments 
Phil Henry, 1300 Noretta Drive, appeared before Council and expressed his belief that the 

Mayor's letter in the City News and Views was misleading and he questioned if it violated state law 
because he believes it promoted the local option sales tax. 

Elaine Hardwick, 806 Garfield A venue, appeared before Council and stated her concern about 
mud and debris that moves down a nearby bluff and flows onto her property. Public Works Director 
Swanson stated the hillside has a spring that becomes a problem every 3-5 years. This year with 
saturated soils it is worse. He indicated he has spoken with Ms. Hardwick and plans are in place to tile 
and create an intake for storm sewer in the area but the weather has prevented the work. 

Barb Church, I 02 Wheeler A venue, appeared before Council and stated she believes monthly 
brush pick-up should be reinstated. She indicated she did not agree with the proposed sewer and water 
base rate increase, rather she believes the increase should be on the cost per gallon. Mayor Dehen 
indicated the cost of the facilities is increasing regardless of water usage. Ms. Church also asked if the 
residential and commercial rates were different. City Clerk Van Genderen indicated they were 
different. Ms. Church asked for clarification on the election signs. Attorney Kennedy indicated State 
Statute allows additional signs during an election year for a specified time. 

Business Items 
None. 



COUNCIL MINUTES October 3, 2016 

City Administrator and Staff Comments 
Public Works Director Swanson reported fall drop-off would be held at the Public Works 

Department, 610 Webster Avenue on October 14-16 from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Residents are 
encouraged to dispose of additional refuse and bulky items that are not collected as part of the regular 
garbage service. 

2 

Public Works Director Swanson stated the City of North Mankato staff brought equipment and 
man hours to local areas hit by flooding. 

Mayor Dehen stated he spoke with Emergency Management who thanked North Mankato staff 
for their work. 

Mayor and Council Comments 
Mayor Dehen stated Coffee with the Council will be held on Saturday, October gth from 11 :00 

a.m. to 12 noon at the American Bar located at 503 Belgrade Avenue. 
Mayor Dehen indicated Dakota Meadows, Hoover and Garfield schools would be participating 

in Bike and Walk to School week by encouraging students to bike or walk to school on Wednesday, 
October 5th so drivers should be aware of possible increased student activity. 

Mayor Dehen stated Monday, October 10th Dino's Pizzeria will be holding a Firemen's Relief 
Association Fundraiser. 

Mayor Dehen reported Greater Mankato Growth would be hosting a sales tax educational 
public meeting on October 17th at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers, 1001 Belgrade Avenue. 

Public Comments 
None. 

There being no further business, on a motion by Council Member Norland, seconded by 
Council Member Steiner, the meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 

Mayor 

City Clerk 



NM City of North Mankato, MN 

Cll'Y or NORHl MANIU<fO 

Vendor Number Vendor Name 
Bank Code: APBNK-APBNK 

02433 
00031 
02254 
00039 
00070 

00090 
00102 

00124 
00137 

00142 
00174 

00182 

00216 
00304 

00310 
00322 

00337 

02388 
00348 

02237 

00401 
00401 
00404 

00432 

02458 

02470 
00447 

00462 
00463 

00460 
00476 
00493 
00494 
00503 
00506 

00538 
02468 

00608 

00609 

00680 
01274 

01275 
02465 

00639 

00646 
02454 

02464 

00691 

00720 
00743 
00754 
00761 
00776 

**Void** 

**Void** 

**Void** 

**Void** 

ADVANCED AUTO PARTS 

AIM ELECTRONICS, INC. 
ALBRIGHT LAWNS 

ALL AMERICAN TOWING 

AM LAWN, !NC. 

APT MACHINING & FABRICATING, INC. 

AUDIO EDITIONS 

BAUER'S UPHOLSTERY 

BENCO ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 

BETHANY LUTHERAN COLLEGE 

BOLTON & MENK, INC. 
BOYER TRUCKS 

C & S SUPPLY CO, INC. 

CREATIVE AO SOLUTIONS, INC. 
CRYSTEEL TRUCK EQUIPMENT, !NC 

DALCO 

DEMCO, INC. 

DESIGN RUB!C INC 

DIRT MERCHANT, INC. 
EMERGENCY RESPONSE SOLUTIONS 

EXPRESS SERVICES, !NC. 
EXPRESS SERVICES, !NC. 

FASTENAL COMPANY 

FLEETPRlDE 

FLEMING, JIM & MARY ELLEN 

FREDERICK, MICHAEL 

FREE PRESS 

G & K SERVICES 

G & L AUTO SUPPLY, LLC 

G AND H READY M!X, LLC 

GIEFER, DANIEL 

GOODWIN, TONY 
GOPHER STATE ONE-CALL 

GREAT AMERICAN BUSINESS PRODUCTS 

GREATER MANKATO GROWTH, INC. 

HAWKINS, !NC. 

HOFF BARRY, PA 

INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 

INMAN, R!CH 

J.J. KELLER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

JADD SEPPMANN & SONS, !NC. 

JADD SEPPMANN & SONS, LLP 

JANWAY COMPANY USA, INC. 
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 

JOHNSON, KATIE 

JUNKER, TANYA 

K & C PLUMBING, INC. 
KENNEDY & KENNEDY LAW OFFICE 

KW!K TRIP, !NC. 

LARKSTUR ENGINEERING & SUPPLY, INC. 

LEAGUE OF MINNESOTA CITIES 

LEON'S CUSTOM BACKHOE, !NC. 

LLOYD LUMBER CO. 

Payment Date Payment Type 

10/04/2016 

10/04/2016 
10/03/2016 

10/07/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17 /2D16 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/04/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17 /2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17 /2016 

10/17 /2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17 /2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/04/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/l 7 /2016 
10/17/2016 

lD/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17 /2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2D16 

lD/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17 /2016 
10/17 /2016 

10/04/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
lD/17/2016 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Claims List - Regular 
By Vendor Name 

Date Range: 10-17-16 

Discount Amount Payment Amount Number 

D 

0 

0 

0 
0 

D 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
D 

D 
0 

D 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

D 

8S9S2 
85956 

(581.80) 85894 

(275.00) 80689 
65.84 85962 

100.00 85963 
90.00 85964 

22S.OO 8S96S 
120.00 85966 
80.00 85967 

593.44 85968 

450.00 8S969 

29,216.29 85951 
10,562.50 85970 

53,715.43 85971 

28.48 8S972 
67.04 85973 

147.50 85974 

57.64 8597S 
605.09 85976 

85.78 8S977 

150.00 85978 
30,178.68 85979 

94.68 85980 

581.80 8S9S3 
1,101.28 85981 

244.87 85982 

37.S4 85983 

1,150.00 85984 

44.00 85985 
182.75 85986 
229.51 85987 

229.67 85988 

424.00 85989 

75.00 85990 
525.00 85991 

199.80 85992 
627.20 85993 

1,475.00 85994 

3,601.72 85995 
2,753.00 85996 

1,13S.77 8S997 

7S.OO 8S998 

1,029.96 8S999 
4,600.00 86000 

470.00 86001 
79.56 86002 

1,595.00 85954 

36.29 86003 

127.81 86004 
2,181.61 86005 

8, 724.92 86006 

14,594.50 86007 
8.32 86008 

60.00 86009 
1,540.00 86010 

750.88 86011 



00796 

00829 
00847 
00857 

02463 

00861 
00874 

0087S 

02466 

00963 
02183 

00902 

0093S 
00936 

009S6 
00997 
01009 

01013 
0104S 

010S2 

010S3 
01057 

01083 
0200s 
01090 

01106 
01107 
01133 

01158 
01161 
01211 

02182 
02471 
01263 

01290 
01079 

01354 
01380 

01402 
02467 
01433 
02150 
01438 
01456 
01477 

00486 
01S23 
01S2S 

01SS7 
01572 

00012 

00241 

00241 

00241 
020S8 
02058 
02058 
020S8 
020S8 

020S8 

020S8 
00311 
00733 

00749 

00923 
00910 

01335 

MAC QUEEN EQUIPMENT, INC 10/17/2016 

MANKATO PUBLIC SCHOOLS 10/17/2016 

MATHESONTRl"GAS, !NC. 10/17/2016 

MC GOWAN WATER CONOITIONING, INC 10/17/2016 
MCCANN, KEVIN 10/17/2016 

MCFOA REGION V 10/17/2016 
MENARDS-MANKATO 10/17/2016 

METRO SALES, INC. 10/17/2016 

MIDWEST RECYCLING SOLUTIONS 10/17/2D16 

MINNESOTA BUREAU OF CR!M!NALAPPREHEr 10/17/2016 

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 10/07/2016 
MINNESOTA IRON & METAL CO 10/17/2016 

MINNESOTA PIPE & EQUIPMENT 10/17/2016 
MINNESOTA POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY 10/17/2016 

MINNESOTA WASTE PROCESSING CO. 10/17/2016 

MTI DISTRIBUTING CO 10/17/2016 

NAPA AUTO PARTS - MANKATO 10/17 /2016 

NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES 10/17/2016 

NIELSEN BLACKTOPPING 10/17/2016 

NORTH CENTRAL INTERNATIONAL 10/17/2016 
NORTH KATO SUPPLY, LLC 10/17/2016 

NORTH MANKATO MOTOR VEHICLE REGISTRA 10/04/2016 

OVERDRIVE, INC. 10/17/2016 

PANTHEON COMPUTERS 10/17/2016 

PARAGON PR!NTING, MAILING & SPECIALTIES 10/17/2016 

PETrY CASH 

P!NE PRODUCTS, !NC. 

POWERPLAN/RDO EQUIPMENT 
QUALITY 1 HR FOTO 

QUALITY TREE SERVICE 

R!VER BEND BUSINESS PRODUCTS 

RYAN, JESSICA 

sec FOUNDATION 

SCHWlCKERT'S TECTA AMERICA LLC 

SLETIEN, CORY 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17 /2016 

10/17/2016 

SMC-SOUTHERN MINNESOTA CONSTRUCTION 10/17/2016 
SUBURBAN TIRE WHOLESALE, INC. 10/17/2016 

TEXAS REFINERY CORP. 

T!RE ASSOCIATES 

TRAFFIC LOGIX 

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES 

U.S. BANK 

UNIFORMS UNLIMITED INC 

US HIGHWAY 14 PARTNERSHIP 

VIKING ELECTRIC SUPPLY, INC. 

W.W. GOETSCH ASSOCIATES, INC. 

WENZEL AUTO ELECTRIC CO 

WEST CENTRAL SANITATION, INC. 

XCEL ENERGY 

ZWASCH KA, JAM ES 

ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP 

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS 

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS 

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS 

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS 

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS 

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS 

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS 

CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING 

LAKES GAS CO #10 

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 
10/17/2016 

10/17/2016 

10/04/2016 
10/17 /2016 

10/03/2016 

10/03/2016 

10/03/2016 
10/10/2016 

10/10/2016 
10/12/2016 

10/12/2016 
10/12/2016 

10/12/2016 

10/12/2016 

10/12/2016 

10/10/2016 
10/12/2016 

10/12/2016 
MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF LABOR & INDU 10/12/2016 

MINNESOTA VALLEY TESTING LAB, INC. 

STAPLES ADVANTAGE 

lD/10/2016 

10/10/2016 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Regular 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

Bank Draft 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

D 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
D 
0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 

2,429.34 86012 
144.00 86013 

112.85 86014 

68.40 86015 

90.07 86016 

lS.00 86017 
142.99 86018 
264.50 86019 

12,000.0D 86020 

270.00 86021 

317.19 85959 

165.41 86022 

893.lS 86023 

250.00 86024 
23,980.38 86025 

1,268.36 86026 

22.85 86027 

1,489.00 86028 

91,S2S.37 86029 

459.68 86030 

320.00 86031 
16.00 85957 

936.52 86032 

4,36S.69 86033 
2SO.OO 86034 

78.34 8603S 

2,340.00 86036 
37.14 86037 

400.00 86038 

700.00 86039 

390.34 86040 

131.76 86041 
2,250.00 86042 

661.20 86043 

75.00 86044 

S99.00 8604S 

1,012.00 86046 

S9S.50 86047 

150.94 86048 

3,794.00 86049 

600.00 86050 

450.00 86051 

276.00 860S2 

2,500.00 860S3 
2,385.50 86054 

S86.00 860SS 

283.87 86056 

2S,760.9S 860S7 

23,372.S6 8S9SS 

75.00 86058 

250.00 DFTOOOOS83 
7.76 DFT0000580 

15.49 DFT0000581 

403.96 DFT0000590 

3,146.96 DFT0000589 

30.61 DFT0000609 

36.99 DFT0000610 

40.62 DFT0000611 

32.39 DFT0000612 

250.92 DFT0000613 

42.94 DFT0000614 

S4.00 DFTOOOOS91 

105.40 DFT0000615 

534.62 DFT0000608 

100.00 DFT0000616 

S9.2S DFTOOOD592 

147.20 DFTOOOOS93 



01335 STAPLES ADVANTAGE 10/12/2016 Bank Draft 

01470 VERIZON WIRELESS 10/12/2016 Bank Draft 

01470 VERIZON WIRELESS 10/12/2016 Bank Draft 

02178 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WI-MN 10/03/2016 Bank Draft 
01525 WEST CENTRAL SANITATION, INC. 10/12/2016 Bank Draft 

All Council 
The above manual and regular claims lists are approved by: 

MARK DEHEN- MAYOR 

KIM SPEARS- COUNCIL MEMBER 

DIANE NORLAND- COUNCIL MEMBER 

WILLIAM STEINER- COUNCIL MEMBER 

ROBERT FREYBERG- COUNCIL MEMBER 

0 95.26 DFT0000604 
0 485.77 DFT0000606 
0 15.69 DFT0000607 
0 100.73 DFT0000582 
0 3,838.15 DFT0000605 

397 364.91 125 

Authorization Signatures 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION APPROVING DONATIONS/CONTRIBUTIONS/GRANTS 

WHEREAS, the Minnesota Statute 465.03 and 465.04 allows the governing body of any 
city, county, school district or town to accept gifts for the benefit of its citizens in accordance 
with terms prescribed by the donor; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NORTH MANKATO, MINNESOTA, that the following donations/contributions/grants are 
approved as follows: 

Donor Restriction Amount 

Moon Dog Charities Librmy Endowment Fund-Special Programs $210.00 

Jo Robbins Library Endowment Fund-Books $150.00 

$360.00 

Adopted by the City Council this 17'11 day of October 2016. 

Mayor 

City Clerk 



1001 Belgrade Ave 

r:m~ 
NORTH MANKATO 

PARK PERMIT North Mankato, MN 56003 
507-625-4141 
www.northmankato.com 

Permit #: ----'4> __ -2017 

Date: 11JJ1fl 
Start time: 

Stop time: 

l0'.30~11\A.. 

3 ·.~0~M 

Fee: $~0.00 

Shelter: ~Spring Lake Shelter #1 D Spring Lake Shelter #2 

Event Name: GAtho\ l.C... Orol~r- <>~ F6res1---€Y-S 

D Wheeler Park Indoor Shelter 

Address: 4 l 2- Ty leY-A-V<- . 1'J , t'V\ k.TO 

Phone: 3 <61 -<;?I 0l'.t> #of People: 80 

Use of Tents (or anything requiring staking) 94 No D Yes *If Yes, Please contact Gopher State One Call 
*Bounce House requires waiver 800-252-1166 one week prior to event. 

Alcoholic Beverages (wine & beer only) ~ No D Yes * $250 refundable deposit and $25 keg permit 

Please specify: Cans Keg Catering• (must contact City Hall) 

Audio (requires audio permit) D No J&i Yes 

Allowed 

• Personal grills 
• Keg beer provided a permit is obtained 
• Fishing/ice fishing on Ladybug Lake and Spring Lake only 
• Pets in Benson Park and Bluff Park provided they are on a 6' leash 
• Canoes and kayaks on Ladybug Lake and Spring Lake (children 

under 12 must be accompanied by an adult and wear a life preserver) 
• Hog roasts provided they are on a hard-surfaced lot 

Prohibited 

• Vehicles are not allowed to be parked or driven on the grass for 
any reason unless permission is given from the Parks Department. 

• Pets (allowed in Benson Park and Bluff Park only) 
• Glass containers 
• Campfires I Bonfires I Fire Rings 
• Snowmobiles, ATVs, golfing, swimming, boating and motorized 
• flotation devices 
•Dunk Tanks 
• Audio equipment may not be played so loud as to interfere with 
the reasonable use of the park by others. All audio devices must 
end at 10 PM 

I, the undersigned, understand that the park shelter reservation fee is non-refundable. If prior approval is not obtained for 
the installation of additional tents or stakes and causes disruption of utilitiy services, I agree to be held liable for any repairs 
to service lines. 

received the Audio Permit Instruction nd understand that failure to comply with the audio instructions 

bi l i~°"10Ta1ifVI' udio permit. 

SIGNED: -+-,~~~--1-----+~~-+------L!t.....::....P_~...i..:::.__-.::::....:~::...._~.:.__~---

o APPROVED o DENIED 
~REFER TO COUNCIL 

Receipt# ROOO 50f)ll ~ook 

City Clerk 

Online 

Date 

Date 

__ Park Police Staff Initials 



N IAA CITY Ql{J1~t;;:, ....a NORTH MANKATO Audio Perrr1it ............... ""-... -.. .. ........ . 

1001 Belgrade Avenue Pa ri< Perm ii ... _____ If> .... _ .. __ ~ l-61 (o 
North Mankato, MN 56003 

507-625-4141 Fax: 507-625-4151 

www.nor_thmanke_~<;_oJD 

About: 

Audio Permit 

An audio permit is required for anyone operating outdoor amplified sound (i.e a loudspeaker, public address 

system, or sound amplifying equipment). The sound system cannot be operated before 7:00 am or after 

10:00 pm. 

Audio Permit Responsibilities: 

• An onsite event coordinator must be available by mobile during the event. 

• An applicant will provide a schedule of any music or entertainment proposed to occur during the 

event. 

• A beginning and end time must be supplied on the application and the event coordinator must 

ensure compliance. 

• Applicants must comply with City Code Ordinance 90.045 and Minnesota Rules Chapter 7030 which 

limits noise. 

• Noise levels cannot exceed 60 dBA more than 50 percent of the time. 

What happens if there is a noise complaint? 

• A North Mankato Patrol Officer will meet with the complainant and evaluate and measure the noise 

using a decibel reader at the location of the complainant. 

• If the noise is found out of compliance the Patrol Officer will contact the on site event coordinator 

and the amplified sound must be turned down. 

• If the on site event coordinator does not comply, the event will be immediately terminated and the 

group will be disbursed. 

• Failure to comply will affect future ability to obtain an audio permit. 

AMPLIFIED SOUND: LIVE MUSIC/BAND BEGIN TIME: .. _ .. ___ _ 

DJ/KARAOKE MACHINE END TIME: 

OTHER _S_roa.l,L p A_S~ &klo/\ 
\'.Cl '( lb l V> c. 0 

<c 'P ""'t J LOCATION/ SllELTEf\: v '-' ---· 

ONSITE COORDINATOH: PRINT NAME: f-iA0T~'P_~~KS ~ 
M 0 BI LE NU M 8 ER .. f't>7 :12.'1::..'1.J .. &."2:::.... -.. - _ .... 

. I, Hff UNDEl1SIGNED, HAVE RECEIVED THE AUDIO PERMIT AND UNDEHSTAND THAT FAll.Uf1E TO 

/1N AUDIO l'rnMIT. 

SiGN/\TURf::: 

CITY CLEF\!(: l.lFNllD ;\P P!\C)VF D 

r3 C)C) !< POLIG ONl.INE STAFF INTIALS ...... _ .. _ .... .. 



1001 Belgrade Ave 

m~ 
NORTH MANKATO 

PARK PERMIT North Mankato, MN 56003 
507-625-4141 
www.northmankato.com 

Permit #: 

Date: 

__ li __ -2017 

_J_;_&;J_J 
Start time: 

Stop time: 

\I '. oo o)f'{\ 

:;; c;;;. ao \.z9 'f~r-rn ·, t 
Fee: $ ~0, DO 

Shelter: 

I{·.()() eM / (d-50·00 ~ost+) 
D Spring Lake Shelter #2 rYWheeler Park lndo~ Shelter D Spring Lake Shelter #1 

Event Name: 

Name: 

Address: 1 oi 

Phone: 501' 3 d-1 - °tl.l'OS ( Johv\) # of People: 100 

Use of Tents (or anything requiring staking) D No ~Yes *If Yes, Please contact Gopher State One Call 
*Bounce House requires waiver 800-252-1166 one week prior to event. 

Alcoholic Beverages (wine & beer only) D No {B Yes * $250 refundable deposit and $25 keg permit 

Please specify: Cans cgy Catering• (must contact City Hall) 

Audio (requires audio permit) D No ~ Yes 
Allowed 

• Personal grills 
• Keg beer provided a permit is obtained 
• Fishing/ice fishing on Ladybug Lake and Spring Lake only 
• Pets in Benson Park and Bluff Park provided they are on a 6' leash 
• Canoes and kayaks on Ladybug Lake and Spring Lake (children 
under 12 must be accompanied by an adult and wear a life preserver) 

• Hog roasts provided they are on a hard-surfaced lot 

Prohibited 

•Vehicles are not allowed to be parked or driven on the grass for 
any reason unless permission is given from the Parks Department. 

• Pets (a llowed in Benson Park and Bluff Park only) 
• Glass containers 
• Campfires I Bonfires I Fire Rings 
• Snowmobiles, ATVs, golfing, swimming, boating and motorized 
• flotation devices 
•Dunk Tanks 
• Audio equipment may not be played so loud as to interfere with 
the reasonable use of the park by others. All audio devices must 
end at 10 PM 

ef I, the undersigned, understand that the park shelter reservation fee is non-refundable. If prior approval is not obtained for 
the installation of additional tents or stakes and causes disrupt ion of utilitiy services, I agree to be held liable for any repairs 
to service lines. 

/ I, the undersigned, have received the Audio Permit Instructions and understand that failure to comply with the audio instructions 
may terminate the event and revent future ability to obtain an audio permit. 

SIGNED:~~~~~~ ... , ':K.~c.:::.· ~~==----_!_~~0~--~0L' :.=-·- ____!___/ ~G:__ 
A 

D J.PPROVED D DENIED 
"'ref REFER TO COUNCIL 

Receipt# R 0'b05 I '64 
City Clerk 

Book Online 

Date 

Date 

__ Park Police Staff Initials 



.... CITY~~~ 

........ NORTH MANKATO 
1001 Belgrade Avenue 

Audio Permit q 2016 
Park Permit --9=---- 2016 

North Mankato, MN 56003 

507-625-4141 Fax: 507-625-4151 

www .northmankato.com 

About: 

Audio Permit 

An audio permit is required for anyone operat ing outdoor amplified sound (i.e a loudspeaker, public address 

system, or sound amplifying equipment ). The sound system cannot be operated before 7:00 am or after 

10:00 pm. 

Audio Permit Responsibilities: 

• An onsite event coordinator must be available by mobile during the event. 

• An applicant w ill provide a schedule of any music or enterta inment proposed to occur during the 

event . 

• A beg inning and end time must be supplied on the app lication and the event coord inator must 

ensure compliance. 

• Applicants must comply w ith City Code Ordinance 90.045 and Minnesota Ru les Chapter 7030 w hich 

limits noise. 

• Noise leve ls cannot exceed 60 dBA more than 50 percent of the time. 

What happens if there is a noise complaint? 

• A North M ankato Patrol Officer w ill meet with t he complainant and evaluate and measure the noise 

using a decibel reader at the location of the complainant. 

• If the noise is found out of compliance the Patro l Officer wi ll contact the onsite event coordinator 

and the amplified sound must be turned down. 

• If the onsite event coord inator does not comply, t he event w ill be immediately terminated and the 

group will be disbursed . 

• Failure to comply w ill affect futu re abi lity to obta in an audio permit. 

AMP LI FIED SOUND: Cl LIVE MUSIC/BAND 

~ DJ/KARAOKE MACHINE 

[J OTHER: ------

LOCATION/SHELTER: \!J~ 
~~-------

BEGIN TIM E: 

END TIME: 

ONSITE COORDINATO R: p RI NT NAME :_...;...-_,_f_,,o.__~:;_;:_-LJ....:c_ __ c_~_J_p,_· -'--{-jl'-'-~-(~_v_J -
I 

M OBILE NUMBER: __ 3_;2._7~--c-.~/ ~t1~c_s_-___ _ 

J I, THE UNDERSIGNED, HAVE RECEIVED THE AUDIO PERMIT AND UNDERSTAND THAT FAILURE TO 

COMPLY W ITH THE AUDIO PO LICY MAY TERMIN ATE THE EVENT AND PREVENT FUTURE ABILITY TO OBTAIN 

AN AUDIO PERMIT. 

SIGNATURE e;;{'k&J &~ 
CITY CLERK: ?---

DA TE: ------"--/~(_; -__,G'""'-' _- ___,f (;,=--'--
DENIED 1 APP ROVED --------------------

BOOK POLICE ONLINE STAFF INTIALS 



RESOLUTION NO. 

RESOLUTION WAIVING WAITING PERIOD 
FOR EXEMPTION FROM LAWFUL GAMBLING LICENSE FOR 

LEEP 

WHEREAS, LEEP has made application for exemption from a charitable gambling 
license to conduct a raffle and Bingo on February 24, 2017 at the Mankato Brewery, 1119 Center 
Street, within the City of North Mankato, Minnesota, which application was received by the City 
on October 11, 2016; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NORTH MANKATO, MINNESOTA, that the City waives the mandatory waiting period 
concerning the issuance of an exemption from lawful gambling license concerning the above
identified organization. 

Adopted by the City Council this 17111 day of October 2016. 

Mayor 
ATTEST: 

City Clerk 



MINNESOTA LAWFUL GAMBLING 

LG220 Application for Exempt Permit 
An exempt permit may be issued to a nonprofit Application Fee (non-refundable) 

9/16 
Page 1 of 2 

organization that: Appl ications are processed in the order received . If the applicat ion . conducts lawful gambling on five or fewer days, and is postmarked or received 30 days or more before the event, the . awards less than $50,000 in prizes during a calendar applicat ion fee is $100; otherwise t he fee is $150. year. 
If total raffle prize value for t he calendar year will be Due to the high volume of exempt applications, payment of 

$1,500 or less, contact the Licensing Specialist assigned to additiona l fees prior to 30 days before your event wi ll not expedite 

your county by calling 651-539-1900. service, nor are telephone requests for expedited service accepted . 

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION 

Organization Previous Gambling 
Name: LEEP Permit Number: 

Minnesota Tax ID Federal Employer ID 
Number, if any: Number (FEIN}, if any: 41-1403190 

Mailing 
Address: 929 North 4 t h Street 

City: Ma nkato State: MN Zip: 56001 County: Blue Earth 

Name of Chief Executive Officer (CEO): Mandy Hunecke 

Daytime Phone: 507-387-5122 Email: d irect or@mankato leep.o rg 

NONPROFIT STATUS 

Type of Nonprofit Organizat ion (check one): 

D Fraternal D Rel igious D Veterans 0 Other Nonprofit Organization 

Attach a copy of one of the following showing proof of nonprofit status: 

(DO NOT attach a sales tax exempt status or federal employer ID number, as they are not proof of nonprofit status.) 

D A current calendar year Certificate of Good Standing 
Don't have a copy? Obtain this certificate from: 

MN Secretary of State, Business Services Division Secretary of State website, phone numbers: 
60 Empire Drive, Suite 100 www.sos.state.mn.us 
St. Pau l, MN 55103 651-296-2803, or toll free 1-877-551-6767 

0 IRS income tax exemption (501(c)) letter in your organization's name 
Don't have a copy? To obtain a copy of your federal income tax exempt letter, have an organization officer contact the 
IRS toll free at 1-877-829-5500. 

D IRS - Affiliate of national, statewide, or international parent nonprofit organization (charter) 
If your organization fal ls under a parent organization, attach copies of both of the following: 
1. IRS letter showing your parent organization is a nonprofit 501(c) organization with a group ruling, and 
2. the charter or letter from your parent organization recognizing your organization as a subordinate. 

GAMBLING PREMISES INFORMATION 

Name of premises where the gambling event will be conducted 
Mankato Brewery (for raffles, list t he site where the drawing wi ll take place): 

Address (do not use P.O. box) : 1119 Center ST 

City or 
Township: North Mankato Zip: 56003 County: Nicollet 

Date(s) of activity (for raffles, 
Frida]:'., Februar l:'. 24, 20 17 indicate the date of the drawing) : 

Check each type of gambling activity that your organization wi ll conduct: 

DBingo D Paddlewheels D Pull -Tabs DTipboards 

4QD0 .00 0 Raffle (total value of raffle prizes awarded for the calendar year: $ ) 

Gambling equipment for bingo paper, bingo boards, raffle boards, paddlewheels, pull-tabs, and tipboards must be obtained 
from a distributor licensed by the Minnesota Gambling Control Board. EXCEPTION : Bingo hard cards and bingo ball selection 
devices may be borrowed from another organization authorized to conduct bingo. To find a licensed distributor, go to 
www.mn.gov/gcb and click on Distributors under List of Licensees, or call 651-539-1900. 



LG220 Applicat ion for Exempt Permit 
9/16 

Page 2 of 2 

LOCAL UNIT OF GOVERNMENT ACKNOWLEDGMENT (required before submitting application to 
the Minnesota Gambling Control Board) 

CITY APPROVAL 
for a gambling premises 
located within city limits 

~The appl ication is acknowledged with no waiting period. 

__ The application is acknowledged with a 30-day waiting 
period, and allows the Board to issue a permit after 30 days 
(60 days for a 1st class city). 

__ The application is denied. 

Print City Name: ~;+,, J Nbrjh 
Signature of it p Gorn:=1: 

I -· ~ 

The city or county must sign before 
submitting application to the 

Gambling Control Board. 

COUNTY APPROVAL 
for a gambling premises 

located in a township 

__ The application is acknowledged with no waiting period. 

__ The application is acknowledged wit h a 30-day waiting 
period, and allows the Board to issue a permit after 
30 days. 

__ The application is denied. 

Print County Name: -------------- - --

Signature of County Personnel: 

Title: ______________ Date: ______ _ 

TOWNSHIP (if required by the county) 
On beha lf of the township, I acknowledge t hat the organizat ion 
is applying for exempted gambling activity within the township 
limits. (A township has no statutory authority to approve or 
deny an applicat ion, per Minn. Statutes, section 349.213.) 

Print Township Name: ----------------

Signature of Township Officer : ____________ _ 

Title: _____________ Date: ______ _ 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S SIGNATURE (required) 

The information provided in this application is complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I acknowledge that the fi nancia l 
report will be completed and returned to he Board within 30 days of t he event date. 

REQUIREMENTS MAIL APPLICATION AND ATTACHMENTS 

Complete a separate application for: Mail application with: 
• all gambling cond ucted on two or more consecutive days, or __ a copy of your proof of nonprofit status, and 
• all gambling cond ucted on one day. 

Only one application is requi red if one or more raffle drawings are 
conducted on the same day. 

Financial report to be completed within 30 days after the 
gambling activity is done: 

__ application fee (non-refundable). If the applicat ion is 
postmarked or received 30 days or more before the event, 
t he applicat ion fee is $ 100; otherwise the fee is $150. 
Make check payable to State of Minnesota . 

A financial report form will be mailed with your perm it. Complete 
and return the financia l report form to the Gambling Control 
Board. 

To: Minnesota Gambling Control Board 
1711 West County Road B, Suite 300 South 
Rosevi lle, MN 55113 

Questions? 
Your organization must keep all exempt records and reports for 
3-1/2 years (Minn. Statutes, section 349.166, subd. 2(f)). 

Cal l the Licensing Section of the Gambling Control Board at 
651-539-1900. 

Data privacy notice: The information requested 
on this form (and any attachments) will be used 
by the Gambling Control Board {Board) to 
determine your organization's qualifications to 
be involved in lawful gambling activities in 
Minnesota. Your organization has the right to 
refuse to supply the information; however, if 
your organizat ion refuses to supply th is 
information, the Board may not be able to 
determine your organization's qualif ications and, 
as a consequence, may refuse to issue a permit. 
If your organization supplies the information 
requested, the Board will be able to process the 

application. Your organization's name and 
address will be public information when received 
by the Board. All other information provided will 
be private data about your organization until the 
Board issues the permit. When the Board issues 
the permit, all informat ion provided will become 
public. If the Board does not issue a permit, all 
information provided remains pr ivate, with the 
exception of your organization's name and 
address which will remain public. Private data 
about your organization are ava ilable to Board 
members, Board staf f whose work requires 
access to the information; Minnesota's Depart-

ment of Public Safety; Attorney General; 
Commissioners of Administration, Minnesota 
Management & Budget, and Revenue; Legislative 
Auditor, national and international gambling 
regu latory agencies; anyone pursuant to court 
order; other individuals and agencies specifically 
authorized by state or federal law to have access 
to the information; individuals and agencies for 
which law or legal order authorizes a new use or 
sharing of information after this notice was 
given; and anyone with your wr itten consent. 

This form will be made available in alternative format (i.e. large print, braille) upon request. 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

FROM Mike Fischer, Community Development Director 

DATE: October 11, 2016 

SUBJECT: October Traffic & Safety Committee Meeting 

On Tuesday, October 11, 2016, the Traffic & Safety Committee met to discuss items of business. 

Committee members present: Council Liaison Kim Spears, Community Member Bill Borchardt, Police 

Chief Chris Boyer, Public Works Director Brad Swanson and Community Development Director Mike 

Fischer. 

The following is a summary of the meeting: 

2. Request to Review On-Street Parking on Rolling Green and Carlson Drive 

Staff presented a request from the Rolling Green Town home Association to review the current on-street 

parking conditions on Rolling Green Lane and near its intersection with Carlson Drive based on the high 

volume of on-street parking the area is experiencing. Jim Santori, 2102 Rolling Green Lane stated 

employees of the Minnesota Autism Center park along Rolling Green Lane as their parking lot cannot 

accommodate all of its employees. As a result, there are issues with mail delivery, garbage pick-up and 

visibility at driveways for those living in the Rolling Green Townhomes. Mr. Santori stated his 

association is requesting no parking on the east side of Rolling Green Lane adjacent to their townhomes 

with consideration given to areas of no parking on Carlson Drive near the Rolling Green Lane 

intersection. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Traffic and Safety Committee recommends the following: 

1. Installation of No Parking signs on the east side of Rolling Green Lane from the Carlson Drive 

intersection to the northernmost town home building. 

2. Installation of No Parking signs on the north side Carlson Drive 100 feet east of the Rolling Green 

Lane intersection. 

3. Installation of No Parking signs on the north side of Carlson Drive 50 feet west of the Rolling Green 

Lane intersection. 



1. Review of Traffic Conditions on Lookout Drive 

At the request of the Traffic & Safety Committee, staff presented the results of a traffic speed and 

volume study conducted in Lookout Drive. The results showed a median southbound speed of 43 MPH 

and a northbound median speed of 47 MPH. Public Works Director Swanson stated the City recently 

purchased a mobile traffic speed sign which will be placed on northbound Lookout for a period a time. 

Chief Boyer indicated that he spoke with the manager of CHS about the use of air brakes for trucks 

leaving the facility traveling on Lookout Drive and stated he has ordered more patrol on Lookout Drive. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Traffic & Safety Committee recommends the use of the electronic traffic speed sign on Lookout 

Drive with more Police patrol. 

3. Request for a Crosswalk on Belgrade Avenue near the Lake Street Intersection. 

Staff presented a citizen request for a pedestrian crosswalk on Belgrade Avenue near the Lake Street 

intersection. The committee reviewed existing traffic volumes, sightlines and street design in this area. 

Additionally, the committee discussed the false sense of security a crosswalk provides to pedestrians. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Traffic & Safety Committee recommends no changes at this intersection based on review of the 

existing conditions 

4. Review On-Street Parking Within Pleasant View Court. 

Based on a citizen concern, staff presented a summary of the on-street parking conditions within 

Pleasant View Court. It was indicated this cul de sac was designed and constructed using on oversized 

radius. As a result, residents are parking perpendicular to the curb versus parallel to maximize 

on-street parking opportunities. The committee reviewed the opportunity to access the street for 

emergency, garbage pick-up and snow plowing purposes. 

RECOMMENDATION 

With no concerns being identified on the current on-street parking conditions, the Traffic & Safety 

Committee recommends no changes to on-street parking. 

5. Review On Street Parking on Lynda le Street Near the Wheeler Avenue intersection 

Council Liaison Spears presented a citizen concern for on-street parking on Lyndale Street near the 

Wheeler Avenue intersection. The concern was based on safety and visibility as a result of on-street 

parking near this intersection. 

RCOMMENDATION 

The Traffic & Safety Committee recommends the yellow painting of curbs on both sides Lyndale Street a 

distance of 10 back from the Wheeler Avenue intersection. 



In other business, Council Liaison Spears the need to review conditions at the intersection of Lor Ray 

Drive and Carlson Drive. Staff indicated that the MPO may be conducting on Intersection Control 

Evaluation study for this intersection in the near future. 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Traffic and Safety Committee 

FROM: Mike Fischer, Community Development Director 

DATE: September 30, 2016 

SUBJECT: October Traffic & Safety Committee Meeting 

A Traffic & Safety Committee meeting has been scheduled for Tuesday, October 11, 2016 at 

3:15 p.m. in the Municipal Building Council Chambers to consider items of business 

AGENDA 

1. Review of Traffic Conditions on Lookout Drive 

2. Request to Review On-Street Parking on Rolling Green Lane and Carlson Drive 

3. Request for a Crosswalk on Belgrade Avenue near the Lake Street Intersection 

4. Review On-Street Vehicle Parking within Pleasant View Court 



1. Review traffic conditions on Lookout Drive 

In August of 2016, the Traffic & Safety Committee met to discuss a citizen request to review 

traffic conditions on Lookout Drive. After review of the request, the Committee recommended 

that traffic tubes be placed on Lookout Drive to collect current traffic volumes and speeds for 

further consideration by the Committee. Attached are the results that show the median speed 

on southbound Lookout Drive was 43 mph and northbound was 47 mph. Therefore, it is 

necessary for the Committee to review the data to consider if any changes are warranted. 



(fr\\ BOLTON 
\!JJI & MENK 

Rea l People. Real Solutions. 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

9/22/20 16 

City of North Mankato 

Ross Tillman, P.E. 

Curt Brezina, E.I.T. 

MEMORANDUM 

Subject: Speed study on Lookout Dr. near Commerce Dr. 
City of North Mankato 
Project No.: Ml8.I I 1274 

12224 Nicollet Avenue 
Burnsville. MN 55337- 1649 

Ph: [952] 890-0509 
Fax: [952] 890-8065 

Bolton-Menk.com 

The City of North Mankato requested a speed study along the corridor of Lookout Dr. near the cross 
streets of Commerce Dr. and Restless Ct. The posted speed on Lookout Dr. in this area is 45 MPH. 
Traffic tube counters were used to assess the vehicle speeds traveling in both directions. The dates the 
study occurred were from Wednesday August 3 I st to Thursday September I si, along with Tuesday 
September I 3th to Wednesday September I 4th. 

It was determined that traffic traveling along Lookout Dr. in the southbound direction, had an g5th 
percentile speed of 48 MPH and a median speed of 43 MPH. Vehicles traveling northbound had an 851h 
percentile speed of 53 MPH with a median speed of 47 MPH. The speed distribution is graphed below. 

SPEED DISTRIBUTION LOOKOUT DR. 
4500 

~ 4000 • Lookout Dr. SB • Lookout Dr. NB 

c 3500 

4 146 

0 11 0 3 0 3 
SB NB SB NB SB NB 
\ I \ I 

5-14 
MPH 

15-19 20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 70-74 75-79 
MPH MPH MP! I MP! I MPH MPH MPH MPH MPH MPI I MPH MPH MPH 

SPEED DISTRIBUTION (MILES PER HOUR) 

Please refer to attachments for all speed data collected for this study. 

11:\NMAN\ M 18 111274\Speed Studies\Lookout Dr\ Lookout Dr Speed Study_9·2 l-16.docx 

Bolton & Menk is on equal opportunity employer. 



Printed: 09/21/2016 at 15:17 

TrafficViewer Pro v1 .6.4.124 

Study Date: Tuesday, 09/13/2016 

Unit ID: 

Location: Lookout Dr. SB Traffic 

5- 15- 20- 25-
14 19 

00:00. 00:59 0 0 
01 :00 - 01 :59 0 0 
02:00 • 02:59 0 0 
03:00 • 03:59 0 0 
04:00 - 04:59 0 0 
05:00 - 05:59 0 0 
06:00 • 06:59 0 0 
07:00 - 07:59 0 0 
08:00 - 08:59 0 0 
09:00 - 09:59 0 0 
10:00 -10:59 0 0 
11:00 -11:59 1 1 
12:00 -12:59 0 1 
13:00. 13:59 0 0 
14:00. 14:59 0 0 
15:00 • 15:59 0 0 
16:00. 16:59 0 0 
17:00 -17:59 0 0 
18:00 -18:59 0 0 
19:00 -19:59 0 0 
20:00 • 20:59 0 0 
21 :00 • 21 :59 0 0 
22:00 - 22:59 0 0 
23:00 - 23:59 0 0 

Totals 1 2 
Percent of Total 0.0 0.0 
Percent of AM 0.0 0.0 
Percent of PM 0.0 0.0 

Standard Dev1at1on: 

Mean Speed: 

Median Speed: 

Modal Speed: 

24 29 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
1 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
3 

0.1 
0.0 
0.1 

5.0 MPH 
42.4 MPH 

42.6 MPH 
42.5 MPH 

0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
2 
1 
5 
3 
0 
1 
3 
2 
2 
4 
4 
2 
1 
2 
2 
1 
0 
0 
0 

36 
0.7 
0.8 
0.7 

Daily Southbound Speeds (MPH) 

30- 35- 40- 45- 50- 55- 60-
34 39 44 49 54 59 64 

1 8 13 6 2 0 0 
2 5 5 4 0 0 0 
0 1 5 3 0 0 0 
2 2 1 4 0 0 0 
3 7 7 4 2 0 0 
2 14 25 22 6 1 0 
8 34 77 52 6 0 0 

52 175 233 162 31 3 0 
21 90 183 87 12 1 1 
10 34 78 65 13 4 0 

7 44 81 55 7 1 0 
11 57 124 79 12 0 0 
11 60 131 70 11 1 0 
15 54 94 56 10 1 0 
10 75 105 67 10 1 0 
12 89 182 87 13 0 0 
12 96 180 129 15 1 0 
14 80 211 124 12 1 0 

7 56 121 62 8 0 0 
10 48 94 38 5 0 0 
11 37 68 23 4 0 0 

2 23 37 19 2 0 0 
2 15 25 8 0 0 0 
3 6 15 2 0 0 0 

228 1110 2095 1228 181 15 1 
4.7 22.7 42.8 25.1 3.7 0.3 0.0 
5.7 22.6 39.9 26.0 4.4 0.5 0.0 
3.9 22.7 44.9 24.3 3.2 0.2 0.0 

Ten Mlle Pace: 40 to 49 MPH 

Percent in Ten Mile Pace: 67.8°/o 

PicoCount 2500 V2.30 (sin# 13010443) 

Posted Speed: 45 

65-
69 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0.0 
0.0 
0.0 

70- 75-
74 79 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 

85th Percentile: 

15th Percentile: 

90th Percentile: 

95th Percentile: 

80-
99 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0.0 
0.0 
0.0 

Total 

30 
16 
10 

9 
23 
72 

178 
662 
398 
204 
196 
288 
287 
232 
272 
388 
436 
443 
256 
197 
144 

83 
50 
26 

4900 
100 
100 
100 

47.8 MPH 

37.1 MPH 
48.8 MPH 

49.8 MPH 

Page 1 



Printed: 09/21/2016 at 15:17 

TrafficViewer Pro v1 .6.4.124 

Study Date: Wednesday, 09/14/2016 

Unit ID: 

Location: Look.out Dr. SB Traffic 

5- 15-
14 19 

00:00 - 00:59 0 0 
01:00 -01:59 0 0 
02:00 - 02:59 0 0 
03:00 - 03:59 0 0 
04:00 - 04:59 0 0 
05:00 - 05:59 0 0 
06:00 - 06:59 0 0 
07:00 - 07:59 0 0 
08:00 - 08:59 0 0 
09:00 - 09:59 0 0 
10:00 -10:59 0 0 
11:00-11:59 0 1 
12:00 -12:59 0 0 
13:00 -13:59 0 0 
14:00 - 14:59 0 0 
15:00 -15:59 0 0 
16:00 -16:59 0 0 
17:00 -17:59 0 0 
18:00 -18:59 0 0 
19:00 -19:59 0 0 
20:00 - 20:59 0 0 
21 :00 - 21 :59 0 0 
22:00 - 22:59 0 0 

Totals 0 1 
Percent of Total 0.0 0.0 
Percent of AM 0.0 0.0 
Percent of PM 0.0 0.0 

Standard Deviation: 

Mean Speed: 

Median Speed: 

Moda! Speed: 

20- 25-
24 29 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
1 
4 

0.1 
0.0 
0.1 

5.1 MPH 

42.8 MPH 

42.9 MPH 

42.5 MPH 

0 
1 
0 
0 
1 
1 
2 
6 
2 
1 
0 
0 
0 
2 
0 
0 
2 
2 
3 
2 
0 
0 
2 

27 
0.5 
0.7 
0.4 

Daily Southbound Speeds (MPH) 

30- 35- 40- 45- 50- 55- 60-
34 39 44 49 54 59 64 

3 8 13 1 1 0 0 
0 2 11 2 0 0 0 
1 0 1 1 3 0 0 
4 2 1 2 2 0 0 
5 4 8 6 1 0 0 
6 18 28 10 7 0 0 
8 42 51 52 7 0 0 

40 147 248 157 31 1 0 
22 76 166 99 11 0 0 
12 50 92 60 16 1 0 
12 55 83 50 7 1 1 

7 56 110 74 14 1 0 
17 60 118 89 13 2 0 
10 46 105 78 16 0 0 

7 59 111 98 20 1 0 
16 63 162 122 28 0 0 
11 71 187 147 14 1 0 
13 85 229 165 23 2 0 
10 51 116 60 11 0 0 
10 54 101 48 7 0 0 
15 51 60 31 2 0 0 

9 20 32 10 2 0 0 
2 11 18 14 2 0 0 

240 1031 2051 1376 238 10 1 
4.8 20.7 41.2 27.6 4.8 0.2 0.0 
5.9 22.7 40.1 25.4 4.9 0.2 0.0 
4.1 19.3 42.0 29.2 4.7 0.2 0.0 

Ten Mile Pace: 40 to 49 MPH 

Percent in Ten Mile Pace: 

PicoCount 2500 V2.30 (sin# 13010443) 

Posted Speed: 45 

65-
69 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0.0 
0.0 
0.0 

70- 75-
74 79 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 

85th Percentile: 

15th Percentile: 

90th Percentile: 

95th Percentile: 

80-
99 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0.0 
0.0 
0.0 

Total 

26 
16 

6 
11 
25 
70 

162 
631 
376 
232 
209 
263 
299 
257 
296 
392 
433 
519 
251 
222 
159 

74 
50 

4979 
100 
100 
100 

48.2 MPH 

37.3 MPH 

49.1 MPH 

50.0 MPH 

Page 2 



Printed: 09/21/2016 at 15:20 

TrafficViewer Pro v1 .6.4.124 

Study Date: Wednesday, 08/31/2016 

Unit 10: 

Location: Lookout Or. NB Traffic 

5- 15-
14 19 

00:00 - 00:59 0 0 
01 :00 - 01 :59 0 0 
02:00 - 02:59 0 0 
03:00 - 03:59 0 0 
04:00 - 04:59 0 0 
05:00 - 05:59 0 0 
06:00 - 06:59 0 0 
07:00 - 07:59 0 0 
08:00 - 08:59 0 0 
09:00 - 09:59 0 0 
10:00 - 10:59 0 0 
11:00-11:59 0 1 
12:00 -12:59 0 0 
13:00 -13:59 0 0 
14:00 -14:59 0 0 
15:00 -15:59 0 0 
16:00 -16:59 0 0 
17:00 -17:59 0 0 
18:00·18:59 0 0 
19:00·19:59 0 0 
20:00 - 20:59 0 0 
21 :00 - 21 :59 0 0 
22:00 - 22:59 0 0 
23:00 - 23:59 0 0 

Totals 0 1 
Percent of Total 0.0 0.0 
Percent of AM 0.0 0.1 
Percent of PM 0.0 0.0 

Standard Dev1at1on: 

Mean Speed: 

Median Speed: 

Modal Speed: 

20- 25-
24 29 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
2 
2 
1 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
7 

0.2 
0.4 
0.1 

6.8 MPH 

46.5 MPH 

46.9 MPH 

47.5 MPH 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
2 
3 
1 
1 
1 
3 
2 
1 
3 
3 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 

21 
0.5 
0.5 
0.5 

Daily Northbound Speeds (MPH) 

30- 35- 40- 45- 50- 55- 60-
34 39 44 49 54 59 64 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
5 13 53 92 66 16 1 
4 26 53 109 76 17 2 

10 26 48 66 40 5 3 
11 30 42 61 31 18 1 
15 45 62 69 41 12 6 

8 30 80 89 84 40 1 
12 54 50 95 67 22 6 
6 47 58 83 59 23 2 

19 48 88 110 77 23 0 
16 52 77 130 102 26 9 
7 37 78 143 113 35 5 
6 20 52 75 72 14 2 
9 34 38 71 39 17 1 
5 25 54 55 30 6 2 
4 15 36 38 18 4 0 
7 8 33 30 19 5 0 
1 7 8 16 10 3 0 

145 517 910 1332 944 286 41 
3.4 12.3 21.6 31.6 22.4 6.8 1.0 
3.8 11.8 21.7 33.4 21.4 5.7 1.1 
3.3 12.5 21.5 30.9 22.8 7.2 0.9 

Ten Mile Pace: 45 to 54 MPH 

Percent in Ten Mile Pace: 54.0'% 

PicoCount 2500 V2.30 (sin# 13010449) 

Posted Speed: 45 

65-
69 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
0 
2 
1 
0 
1 
0 
1 
0 
2 
0 
0 
0 
0 
8 

0.2 
0.1 
0.2 

70- 75-
74 79 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 1 
1 0 
0 0 
1 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
2 1 

0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.0 
0.1 0.0 

85th Percentile: 

15th Percentile: 

90th Percentile: 

95th Percentile: 

80· 
99 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0.0 
0.0 
0.0 

Total 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

248 
290 
201 
197 
252 
335 
308 
283 
369 
413 
424 
244 
211 
177 
116 
102 

45 
4215 

100 
100 
100 

53.4 MPH 

39.4 MPH 

54.6 MPH 

57.2 MPH 

Page 1 



Printed: 09/21/2016 at 15:20 

TrafficViewer Pro v1.6.4.124 

Study Date: Thursday, 09/01/2016 

Unit ID: 

Location: Lookout Dr. NB Traffic 

5- 15- 20- 25-
14 

00:00 • 00:59 0 
01 :00 • 01 :59 0 
02:00 • 02:59 0 
03:00. 03:59 0 
04:00. 04:59 0 
05:00 . 05:59 0 
06:00. 06:59 0 
07:00. 07:59 0 
08:00. 08:59 0 
09:00. 09:59 0 
10:00 -10:59 0 
11:00 -11:59 0 
12:00 -12:59 0 
13:00 -13:59 0 
14:00 -14:59 0 
15:00 -15:59 0 
16:00. 16:59 0 
17:00. 17:59 0 
18:00. 18:59 0 
19:00 -19:59 0 
20:00 • 20:59 0 
21 :00 • 21 :59 0 
22:00. 22:59 0 

Totals 0 
Percent of Total 0.0 
Percent of AM 0.0 
Percent of PM 0.0 

Standard Dev1at1on: 

Mean Speed: 

Median Speed: 

Modal Speed: 

19 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 

0.0 
0.1 
0.0 

24 29 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
2 
0 
1 
0 
1 
2 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
6 

0.2 
0.1 
0.2 

6.9 MPH 

45.9 MPH 
46.3 MPH 

47.5 MPH 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
3 
2 
1 
1 
1 
2 
4 
4 
1 
0 
2 
0 
1 

27 
0.7 
0.7 
0.7 

Daily Northbound Speeds (MPH) 

30- 35- 40- 45- 50- 55- 60-
34 39 44 49 54 59 64 

2 1 2 7 2 0 0 
1 4 4 5 1 2 0 
3 0 0 4 1 0 0 
2 2 3 3 4 2 1 
3 2 9 13 12 3 0 
1 5 17 21 15 6 3 
1 10 31 67 47 14 2 
5 18 61 144 98 17 1 
6 29 43 68 61 9 4 

11 30 44 50 22 5 1 
10 33 38 41 25 8 1 
16 38 51 56 23 14 3 
10 40 61 71 65 14 2 
13 45 52 60 29 14 4 
13 32 49 55 63 13 3 

7 54 71 74 51 20 2 
11 52 87 85 61 23 2 
11 33 56 77 77 25 3 

6 33 46 54 40 14 0 
17 25 40 76 29 9 0 

4 17 25 46 24 3 0 
9 13 25 31 14 2 1 
7 11 20 18 4 3 0 

169 527 835 1126 768 220 33 
4.5 14.2 22.5 30.3 20.7 5.9 0.9 
4.2 12.0 21.1 33.3 21.6 5.6 1.1 
4.7 15.6 23.3 28.4 20.0 6.1 0.7 

Ten Mile Pace: 40 to 49 MPH 

Percent in Ten Mile Pace: 52. 7o/o 

PicoCount 2500 V2.30 (sin# 13010449) 

Posted Speed: 45 

65-
69 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
1 
0 
0 
0 
3 

0.1 
0.1 
0.0 

70- 75-
74 79 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 1 
1 1 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
1 2 

0.0 0.1 
0.0 0.0 
0.0 0.1 

85th Percentile. 

15th Percentile: 

90th Percentile: 

95th Percentile: 

80-
99 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0.0 
0.0 
0.0 

Total 

14 
17 

8 
17 
42 
69 

173 
345 
222 
165 
159 
206 
265 
221 
229 
282 
327 
286 
194 
197 
121 

95 
64 

3718 
100 
100 
100 

53.1 MPH 

38.4 MPH 

54.3 MPH 

56.7 MPH 

Page 2 



2. Request to review on-street parking on Rolling Green Lane and Carlson Drive. 

The City has received a request from the Rolling Green Townhome Association to review 

current on-street parking conditions on Rolling Green Lane and Carlson Drive near the Rolling 

Green Lane intersection. Attached is a map showing the location of the area in question. In 

summary, residents within the Rolling Green Townhomes are concerned with the number of 

vehicles that park on Rolling Green Lane during the work week, particularly on the east side. 

The concerns relate to vehicles parking near the driveways on the east side of Rolling Green 

Lane causing visibility issues when exiting onto the street as well as issues related to mail 

delivery and garbage pick-up. Additionally, there are concerns for traffic visibility near the 

intersection of Rolling Green Lane and Carlson Drive as a result of on-street parking. 

The main source of the on-street parking is from the employees of the Minnesota Autism 

Center. Due to the number of employees that have, their parking lot cannot accommodate all 

employees. As a result, some employees park on Rolling Green Lane. Another area employer, 

BuyFun.com utilizes on-street parking on Carlson Drive as their parking lot cannot 

accommodate the number of seasonal employees they have during the fall months. 

It is requested that the Traffic & Safety Committee review the existing conditions and if 

necessary, make recommendations for change. 



o 222 Feet 

© Bolton & Menk, Inc· Web GIS 9/26/2016 3:28 PM 

• . 

Real People. Real Solutions. 

NM 
Legend 

City Limits 

Medians 

Roadways 

Parcels (5-24-2016) 

Lakes & Ponds 

Minnesota River 

9 
This drawtng is neither a ltcalty recorded map nor a 
survey and 1s no1 intended to be used as one. This 
dr;)w1ng is a comp1la110n of records, mtormllt lOn, and data 
located 1n vanous city, counw, and state ofl1ces, and othe1 
sources affecting the area shown, and 1s to be used for 
reference purposes ontv The City of North Mank.:110 1s not 
'"'"tnnn~1h~ fnr l'nv iniirr111~""'' h"''"'" rnn1.111nHt 



3. Request for a crosswalk on Belgrade Avenue near the Lake Street intersection 

The City has received a citizen request to consider the addition of a pedestrian crosswalk across 

Belgrade Avenue near the intersection of Lake Street. Attached is a map showing the location 

of the intersection. At this intersection the speed limit is 30 mph with on-street parking 

permitted on the south side of Belgrade Avenue. While there is crosswalk across Lake Street at 

this intersection, there is not a crosswalk across Belgrade Avenue. Just east of the intersection, 

there is a bend in Belgrade Avenue which may be responsible for limited visibility at this 

intersection. From this intersection, the nearest crosswalks across Belgrade Avenue are at 

Nicollet Avenue or Cornelia Street as shown on the attached map. 

It is requested that the Traffic & Safety Committee review the existing conditions at the 

intersection. If a crosswalk is not preferred, consideration should be given to alternatives. 



o 234 Feet 

© Bolton & Menk, Inc - Web GIS 9/27/2016 4:30 PM Real People. Real Solutions. 

NM 
Legend 

City Limits 

Medians 

Roadways 

Parcels (5-24-201 6) 

Lakes & Ponds 

Minnesota River 

9 
This draw1n1 ts ne11her ii legally recorded map nor ii 

sut'Vey and 1s no1 intended to~ used as one. This 
draw1ne 1s a comp1la11on of records, 1ntorma11on, 1nd d<1ta 
located in var1ous city, county, and state offices, and or her 

sources affectmg the 3re3 shown, and is to be used tor 
reference purposes only The C•tv of Nonh Mankato is not 
rl"~n\ih~ for anv 1nau11norw>' h"'"'" rnnf .:t1"Nt 



4. Review on-street parking within Pleasant View Court 

Pleasant View Court is a cul-de-sac street with a location shown on the attachment. There are 

four, 2-unit townhomes which have driveway access from Pleasant View Court. While the 

radius of most cul-de-sacs is 50 feet, Pleasant View Court was platted and constructed with a 60 

foot radius. This was a decision made by the original developer. The result is that it is a larger 

street. 

According to one resident who lives within the town homes, other residents are parking vehicles 

within the cul-de-sac as shown on the attached pictures. In summary, due to the larger size of 

the cul-de-sac, residents are parking perpendicular with the curb rather than parallel. It is 

believed that residents are parking in this manner because it provides additional parking 

opportunities for residents. 

As a citizen concern has been made regarding the on-street parking within Pleasant View Court, 

it is requested that the Traffic & Safety Committee review the issue. 



0 313 Fe•t 

©Bolton & Menk, Inc - Web GIS 9/28/2016 8:04 AM Real People. Real Solutions. 

NM 
Legend 

City Limits 

Medians 

Roadways 

Parcels (5-24-2016) 

Lakes & Ponds 

Minnesota River 

9 
ThH: drawing 1s ne11her a legally recorded map nor a 
survey and 1s not intended to be u~d as one. This 
drawing 1s a compilation of records, 1nforma1ton, and dita 
~a1ed 1n various city, county, and state offices, and other 
sources am~cting the area shown, <1nd 1s to be used for 
reference purposes only The City of North M3nk3to •Snot 
,,.U\nn.Yh!.. fnr .lnv 1n.lrr11~r~<. tu•110 1n rnnt.llnf>ri 







CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item: # JOA llDepartment: Administration llCouncil Meeting Date: 10/ 17/ 16 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Adopting Joint Economic Development Services Agreement Regarding the Greater 
Mankato Regional Marketplace. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: Attached please find a redlined and clean version 
of the 2017-2019 REDA Joint Services Agreement. Jonathan Zierdt will present a PowerPoint and provide 
answers to questions. 

If additional space is required, alfach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Adopt Joint Economic Development Services Agreement Regarding the 
Greater Mankato Regional Marketplace. 

For Clerk's Use: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

[XJ CJ c::J CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

- - - - Spears Other (specify) 
Steiner -- --
Norland ----

----Frey berg 
Dehen -- --

CJ workshop CJ Refer to: 

[XJ Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

CJ Special Meeting CJ Other: 



JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
REGARDING THE GREATER MANKATO REGIONAL MARKETPLACE 

THIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
REGARDING THE GREATER MANKATO REGIONAL MARKETPLACE (this "Agreement") 
is made and entered into this __ day of ;'!.(11.J.2016, by and among Greater l\'lankato 
Growth, Inc. and the governmental entities listed herein under the heading "Definition of Greater 
l\lankato Regional 1\1arketplacc" and who execute this Ag1·ccmcnt (collectively "cities and counties" or 
in the singular a "city or county") 

\\'HAT \VE AGREE TO 

It has become broadly accepted. embraced and understood that economic prosperity and activities do not stop 
at jurisdictional boundaries. Rather our econo111ic and con1munity prosperity lies in the success of our 
co!lective marketplace. 

For this reason, the parties wish to facilitate ccono1nic developtnent of the communities that make up the 
Greater Mankato Regional Marketplace. This endeavor will offer a "forum to strategically facilitate 
individual and regional assets and opportunities" for the purpose of business development and will enable us 
to enhance our future economic prosperity. 

Guiding Principles 

• economic prosperity - economic prosperity and continued strategic development and redevelop1nent arc 
goals common to the interest of our individual entities, with regional economic prosperity strengthening 
all communities 

• atmosphere of cooperation - to promote an atmosphere of cooperation in pursuit of econo1nic 
development in the Greater l\1ankato area, while seeking to ensure a cooperative and equitable approach 
to development of the cities and counties 

• unique strengths and characteristics- we 1nust foster relationships which allow contribution of our 
individual expertise toward the common goal and promote the individual strengths and unique 
characteristics of each entity to best match potential deve!op1nent prospects with sites and services to fit 
their needs 

• direct technical assistance- cities and counties will provide the direct development assistance 
necessary in potential facility siting, itnprovcments and public financing, and will work to provide a 
smooth transition from the development and 1narketing effo11 to the ultimate acquisition of a site/facility 
for a development prospect 

•_efficient and effective delivery - successful econo1nic development processes and marketing can best be 
achieved through cooperative efforts focused on increasing the tax base, growing the pfi-1f!a~:-econo1ny, 
and providing employment in the Greater Mankato Regional Marketplace. 

""'"'"'"'"' J);:l'dopmcm St'n'KCS Afi!'ccmrnt 
Ser\'mg the g1w11a Mo11!:mo lfrg1011al ,\fork,·1plaa 

page I o/'J 



• Supportive - our work is both passive and active. providing general market expertise. analvtics and 
information consistently and constantly: and when a specific development opportunity arises will 
actively focus and customize such business and community intelljgence.I 

Definition of Greater Mankato Regional Marketplace 

In December, 2008 the Federal Government designated Mankato - North Mankato as a Metropolitan 
Statistical Area (MSA), including all of Blue Earth and Nicollet counties. lrhe Greater Mankato Regional 
Marketplace has included the MSA as well as-flREI those communities immediately adjacent~ 
historical relationship1 

Consistent with this designation, the parties as communities within that geography wish to participate in this 
Agreement, and further acknowledges there may be additional communities outside of and adjacent to this 
geography that we collectively agree are integral to the marketplace. 

The cities, counties and government entities participating in this revised Agreement (original agreement 
dated September 2009) are as fo llows: 

• Blue Earth County 
• Nicollet County 
• City of Eagle Lake 
• City of Lake Crystal 
• City of LeSueur 
• Cily ef MaElisen Lake 
• City of Mankato 
• City of North Mankato 
• City of Saint Peter 
• Region Nine Development Commission (advisory only, unless fiscal participation) 

General Context and Parameters of the Parties Obligations 

Greater Mankato Growth, Inc.'s (GMG) principal responsibil ity under this Agreement is to provide, 
marketing efforts (as described herein) relating to economic development of the overall regional 
marketplace, cities, and counties, including the development and implementation of programs that identify 
and support expansions and new bus iness in the community and region, whether from firms currently 
operating locally or through recruitment of new enterprises. In carrying out its responsibility, GMG agrees 
to serve as the primary contact for expanding and locating private sector fi rms. This includes all prospects 
whether or not they are derived directly from the development and marketing programs established by GMG 
and this Agreement. Participants of this Agreement acknowledge economic development is a collaborative 
endeavor and understand GMG does not itself have all the necessary resources (i.e. sites, buildings or 
financial resources) available fo r projects, but rather will serve as a faci litator, working with the parties 
and/or providers of these resources to best serve the need of new, expanding or locating companies. 

The cities and counties are responsible for the execution of their municipal regulatory duties and provision 
of public services in support of local economic development. The cities and counties agree to administer 

~17,JR 2016 !Mo<ftfied 0608 2016 \t!Ston\ 

Ei:onomlc /)c\•clopment SerV1ces Agrecmt lll 
Strving tht greater Mm1kato Regional Marketplace 

page 2o/9 

commented [JZ1]: Subsran11ve Add11ion (I): odds Mt.at stem<d 
to be a M iura/ ti' prJnclplt and rtprtJtnJI our octlons 

commented [JZl): Substann.,.. Rrnl/On (2). 1h11 iangu~ MW 
d1Scwml and lnstrttd to rtcog!U:.t those curre111ly partlclpottng. 
Mhl/e btlng rogniUJJll of other pr<Vlow/y expressed and fa/Ure 
lnttralS JnjolrlJng The .. hworrcar rrfcrcntt grounds us In our 
origmal formolion, Mh//e bting delibaa/e aboul chalng1 such 
shqufd k't' col/ectlvely agree 10 "expand " 



their individual economic development programs and initiatives, business pennit/I icensing functions in a 
manner that encourages business expansion and new business starts consistent with their responsibility to 
protect the health and safety of local residents. Further, the cities and counties agree to the extent practical, 
to coordinate their infrastructure development and redevelopment programs with the needs of expanding and 
locating businesses. 

~is Ageement &Rd tile de·,.ele11ment flFeeess &fl!!IY te eeenemie de·1ele11ment &Rd m&Fl1eting seA·iees Felated 
le Ike flFimarylind11Striel eeenemy ineh1dingjeh eFeeting seA·iee seeleF h11Sinesses . Cens11meF Fetail steFe 
&Rd 11refessienel seFYiee seater devele11ment &re net eneemf!&Ssed as tile ellief feellS in this AgFeement; 
hewever, GMG e&R 11revide a fll&tfeFFR fer s111111erting &Rd sl!eweasing tile eemm11nities' e1111ert11Rities &Rd 
assets. Te !his end GMG will assist as ahle with the devele11ment &Rd rede•,.ele11ment eftlle eentral fll&ee 
fllnetiens efeeell eftlle eities (e.g. lle11SiRg, meiR s!Feet h11sinesses, im11lement dealers). Eeell eflke eities 
end ee11nties will eentin11e te he tile 11rimary entity Fes11ensihle feF g11iding eemH1eFeial &Rd 11refessieRal 
seA·iee seeter devele11ment er eveFall redevele11ment iR their res11eetive eity er ee11ntyj 

STRATEGIC Focus OF THE PARTIES 

Objective & Strategic Areas 

To retain and grow the 11r in~ary economic base of thc Greater Mankato Regional Marketplace. 

I) Business Retention 
To retain and expand the existing business base, and includes such activities as conducting 
regular business visits (i.e. Grow Minnesota! Visits), and facili tating resources and services for 
expansion or other business development assistance. 

2) New Enterprise & Emerging Business Development 
To nurture the development of entrepreneurial and new enterprise activity by assisting and 
serving as a resource for connecting such to the extensive business development resources and 
tools available in or connected to the regional marketplace (e.g., Small Business Development 
Center). 

3) New Business Development 
To attract non-local businesses to the marketplace through proactive marketing and recruiting 
strategies, as well as supporting and facilitating responses to development opportunities from 
businesses that approach/contact the cities, counties or GMG. 

The Business Development Process 

Expansion of existing businesses: 

I) §ubstantive expansion requests from an existing business may happen directly between the business 
and its current city or county or between the business and GMO. 

a. If the city or county is contacted directly by the business, GMG will be involved if 
determined necessary by the parties, but at minimum will be kept informed by the applicable 
city or county. 

~7118/20 16 CMod1fied 06i0Rf2016 ' ers19nl 

f:conomrc Dc\ie/opmcnt Serl'ices Agreemem 
Serving the greater Mankato Regional Markelplacc 

pagcJo/9 

Commented [JZl]: Nore 1h11/anguagemoved1opa~ /Om 
Marke1mg. Commu!UCOllOll ond Program Slrvfcu secrion. 



b. IfGMG is contacted by the business, GMG will first be an advocate and facilitator for 
expansion within the existing city or county and will coordinate with the city or county to 
assist with such. 

c. 

2) If the city or county in which the business currently exists is not able to meet the business' faci lity or 
expansion needs, then GMG will facilitate exploration of alternative considerations with other 
entities. (Note: consistent with the guiding principles of the parties contained in this Agreement, 
cities and counties will not engage in relocating a business from one city or county to another but 
rather provide proposals when GMG invites such). 

Locating businesses into the area from outside of the regional marketplace: 

I) GMG will act as an advocate for the cities and counties in the marketing and recruitment of new 
businesses and will coordinate closely with the staff of each entity to reflect the opportunities of each 
as desired. 

2) 

3) At the time a city or county is selected by a business, the entity and business will discuss and finalize 
incentives and the locating of the business. 

Economic Development Marketing, Communication and Program Services 

GMG's economic development marketing and communications strategy and responsibilities will be as 
fo llows: 

Marketing and Communications: 

GMG will develop a comprehensive marketing and communications plan, updated as needed 
with input from the cities and counties. The plan will market the collective strengths of the 
regional marketplace as a site for growing or expanding an existing business or locating potential 
businesses, organizations and site selectors from outside and within the regional marketplace. 
The plan will include goals, objectives and a comprehensive strategy for communicating to key 
audiences with consistent messaging and the most effective tactics that make the best use of our 
collective marketing resources. Tactics that may be considered in this plan include, but are not 
limited to: advert is ing~, digital social media i*es!J news releases, relationship marketing, 
special events and direct mail. GMG will provide periodic reports on the achievement of the 
objectives outlined in this plan. 

~1118/2016 <Modified ll<L·'OfC/20!(1 \trs1on> 

Ecottom1c Dct'Clopmem Scn •lces AJ,'1'CCmen1 
Serving the grcntcr Mankato Rcgwnal Marketplace 

page 4of9 

Commented [JZ4]: Substanmv: Revu/on cf Addition (J). 1/ws• 
revisions help clorlfl our Internal rules of engogJnging and our 
rupon.11b1llry 10 OM anothtr as regional partnNs. -w:hilt we txJ.MOt 
conrrol how business appttirs before any one of us. wt are ablt to 
conrrol our ui.n responses. bthavtors and mlt.roctfons. 

Commented [JZS): SubS1an11ve Revision (4). 1hls Single word 
change Is Intended 10 be surt all tht portlctpotmg t nlttles are mo:ire 
of ALL potent10/ dtvtlopmcnt oppor1um1tes. Yrhlle also prottctmg 
GMG from 1ntulverlcnll)' and wrongful/)' being seen as "dJrec.tmg·· 
or ""seltctmg · -'Miro gt ts 10 stt l4·ho1 deol and rupond 

Commented [JZ6 ] : Substanllve Add111on (5) lhts languag< is 
Intended to get al concern prevtously upre.sst4. to do what GMG 
staff can to tnsurt de~-elopmcnt rtq11ts1s artn ·1 sparse on de1wls or 
100 ambiguous 



GMG Has-will continually redesigne<I and retoole<I its website to 9&-remain inereasingly business 
development centric and as such will continue to be positioned as a one stop, comprehensive 
location that site selectors and organizations can visit to learn about the collective assets of the 
marketplace and individual strengths of the cities and counties. 

GMG has im·esteEI in en enn11alwill maintain website interface and tool~ (e.g .. Location One 
Information Systems LOISGIS Ple1rni11g) designed to provide att-efficient means for each of the 
cities and counties, as well as other property owners and agents, to update their information on 
available properties on: line, thereby creating a comprehensive area-wide inventory. This 
information will be available on the Greater Mankato Growth web site and others" (e.g .. MN 
DEED website MNCAR. etc. M~IPROsJJeeter and ZeemPrespe6terl providing greater visibility 
to site selectors and organizations who might consider building or expanding their business 
anywhere in our regional marketplace. 

GMG will work with the cities, counties and other entities a part of or related to this agreement to 
establish links to +t-GMG tools and resources via their respeetive enline teels. 

• GMG will maintain copies of closed or pending project files or other mechanisms, enabling the cities 
and counties to be advised of the ongoing business development opportunities resulting from its 
economic development marketing and communications efforts. 

• Program Services: 

GMG will fac ilitate initiatives targeted at retaining and growing existing businesses, including an 
annual program of company visits for the purpose of assessing individual and area business needs 
as well as identifying potential development and expansion opportunities. These visits will be 
coordinated with the primary city or county in which the business is located. 

GMG, in support of business development and with respect to the balance of membership 
offerings versus general economic development offerings, will continue to bring to the regional 
economic development strategy initiatives and programming that have a direct impact on the 
development of business. ~uch initiatives may include: s11pply ellein Elevelepment, werlEferee I 
talent Ele ,·elepment (inel11Eling premetien end Ele .·elepment s11ppeFl ef Elireetly related llell5ing 
&ffefls7;assist with site readiness programs and/or initiatives- talent fulfil lment work· improving 
connections to development resources (e.g .. Higher Education}: interaction and relationship with 
the Ag Business EpiCenter initiative: while not leading. being cognizant of and facil itating 
harin c m m n v m nt elem n h usin · and further development 

of an annual regional economic development..l!!!!!.!!1i.!.!!.feAtm!!. 

• [his Agreement and the development process apply to economic development and marketing 
services related to the primarv economy including job creating service sector businesses. Consumer 
brick and mortar retail development are not encompassed as the chief focus in this Agreement: 
however. GMG can provide a platform for supporting and showcasing the communities' 
opportunities and assets. GMG will assist as able with the development and redevelopment of the 
central place functions of each of the cities (e.g. housing, main street businesses). Each of the cities 
and counties will continue to be the primary entity responsible for guiding commercial and 
professional service sector development or overall redevelopment in their respective city or county.I 

• GMG will provide the cities and counties with an annual report, providing outcomes and impact from 
the previous year. 

~)7. l l2016tMod1fied 06'0R'201<) \(rsK>nl 

Economic De\oelopmem Services Agrtement 
Serving 1he grea1er Mankato Regronal Marlretplact 

pag<Jo/9 

Commented [JZ7] : Substtu1t1"• Revision (6) more than 
brmgJng currenl tills language. Ir also 1H11tr Identifies some ntw 

arms wl1'rt GMG mn add""'"'· DJ -.. .. 11"' engage appro{Xtatt/y 
..,.Ith rtlottd subjects not within 111 oom~1ency 

Commented [JZS]: Subsrtu1tlvo Revision (1) this ltu1guag< 
movr:d / rompage 4 5 an<mplS todefin< fX1maty. andesrablish 
d1st1nct1on with bnck and motlar rttarl. but all<Y'Wmgfor GMG ·s 
business mttlllgtnoe and foctlitatlon to support mam Slrtet and 
brick onJ mortar rttatl devtlopmt nl 



FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AND ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Financial 

The cities and counties agree to share in funding and payment of the economic development services 
described in this Agreement with Greater Mankato Growth, Inc. Accordingly, each City and County agrees 
to pay Greater Mankato Growth, Inc. on an annual basis, which shall be invoiced by Greater Mankato 
Growth, Inc., that amount set forth in Addendum I which describes the funding calculation/amounts). 

biven the variance of services and activity relative to a municipalities size and role Ccity compared to 
county) a diversified per capita rate structure has evolved over time and shall be as follows going forward: 

!• Cllles with a population of/ess than 2.000 are not apt to derive similar value or part1c1oate in the 
same fashion as those with a population exceeding 2.000 and having a direct investment o(time and 
dollars. However. all oart1cioants in this Agreement acknowledge there may be specific instances 
identified where REDA services will be helpful to one of these cities, on an ad hoc basts when requested. 
and therebv the regional marketplace. As a result. Co1mtv investments are calculated on total 
population to allow for such interaction and service (services will be coordinated with and as 
appropriate done in collaboration with Region Nine Development Commission). Additionally, all cities 
within a artic1 aim •will be a mvued to artict ate m REDA 's annual summit and will be 
m /uded in the distri th m nth/ REDA R on re uesli 

Governance 

Greater Mankato Growth, Inc. Board of Directors 

A representative of the cities and counties (selected as provided below) will be an ex officio 
Director(s) with full voting rights and privileges. One (I) such ex-officio Director will be added for 
the first six (6) cities and counties, and two (2) ex-officio Directors added if there are seven (7) or 
more cities and counties. 

Advisory Committee 

• The cities and counties will establ ish an Advisory Committee. The Advisory Committee will be 
comprised of a GMG board member and one governmental member from each of the cities and 
counties along with the appropriate staff participant for each. 

• The Advisory Committee will select a Chair and Vice-Chair for meeting admi nistration (since the 
City of Mankato has an ex-officio seat with full voting rights on the Greater Mankato Growth, Inc. 
Board of Directors it shall not be considered for either of these positions). 

• This Advisory Committee will meet on an as needed basis to discuss issues related, but not limited 
to, inviting additional entities beyond the initial cities and counties to join the Advisory Committee 
and/or become parties to this Agreement, funding and amendments to this Agreement. 

~7/1 8120 1 6 CMod1fied 0(\ '0R/2016 \ ers1onl 

Economic /Je\>e/opmem Sen·1ces Agreemem 
Serving the greater Mankato Regional Marketplace 

f1<1ge 60/? 

Commented [JZ9): SUbsron11.., 11<vr11on ~) tmbtdding 1/r< 
formula within 1he Agretmtnl 

Commented [JZ10]: Mod1fica1ton (07 18 16) 9 s. lnJmJ h<re Is 
10 mclude all 0/1/w a11u 1n tht COW111t1 m the c/Jsmbw1on. tM 

upon uqutst .. languagt was 11mply Of.II of rts~ct to not 
ova"Mhtlm 1Jw emall l>oxts of lltou not 111tt:rtstd ~.-vu. """" 
11nplnnm1ed during th< first distrlbuJIOll this ~•II be chan~d to an 
"'opl OU/ • approuch for tho.ct not INUUted In r~1vmg ngr1lar 
dutrtbutlon of the rtfKXI 

Commented [JZ11]: Substantive Addl11on (!I). this ts 
transfonntwonal language 10 1M Agrttmtnt; establishes a thrtsh 
hold at which '"'"''can ~ dtrlwd, b111 gll'tn lht County '1 
lnw.stment allows resouras to be shared 'tthtn Mlpful to all 'M?lhin 
the Grtater Mankato Regional Marketplace 



"Starr• Operating Interaction 

In addition to regular interaction between the cities and counties and Greater Mankato Growth staff, GMO 
will fac ilitate monthly meetings of the "economic development staff' of the cities and counties to discuss 
business prospects, share information on pending economic development proj ects, develop appropriate 
responses, and provide updates. 

Term, Termination and Prior Agreements 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the I" day of January :w+3-2017 and continue until the 31" 
day of December :w+,)2019. Notwithstanding the forgoing, any party may terminate this Agreement 
annually before the end of the calendar year by providing ninety (90) days advance written notice to the other 
parties. Additional government entities may be added, at any time, as parties to this Agreement with the 
written consent of the all the cities, counties and entities then parties to this Agreement and upon execution 
of a document pursuant to which such additional person agrees to be bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

Unless terminated sooner, this Agreement will automatically renew for an additional one-year term, and any 
per capita fee increases will be mutually agreed upon by all parties. 

When executed by the parties this Agreement will supersede and replace the existing Joint Economic 
Development Services Agreement dated Seii1ember 39, 2GG9 Deeember 31, 29 I 2January I 2013 
December 3 1 2016. 

Miscellaneous 

This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties and supersede all prior 
agreements. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Minnesota. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, including facsimile 
counterparts, and signatures, each of which shall be deemed to be an original copy, all of which together 
shall constitute one Agreement binding on all parties hereto, notwithstanding that all parties shall not have 
signed the same counterparts. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed as of the date set forth opposite a parties 
signature. 

~7/!&12016 (Modifitd Of./0&/2016 \ erstonl 

Eco,,omlc /Jc\'Clopmc111 Se/Vices Agreement 
Sen·i"g the gremcr Mankato Regional Marketplace 

page 7o/9 



Blue Earth County 

Drew Gamiillell Kip Bruender 
Chair - Board of Commissioners 

Nicollet County 

Bruce Beany 
Chair - Board of Commissioners 

City of Eagle Lake 

Tim Auringer 
Mayor 

City of Lake Crystal 

Brad Ahrenstorff 
Mayor 

City of Lesueur 

Bell OllerleRobert Broedcr 
Mayor 

City eDlatlisan be lie 

Ke1meth Reiellel 
Mayer 

City of Mankato 

Eric Anderson 
Mayor 

~7/1 R/20 16 <Modified 06/0Rl2016 \t:monl 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Robert W. Meyer 
County Administrator 

Ryan Krosch 
County Administrator 

Seek Tlle11gveRhBrad Potter 
City Administrator 

Bell HaugeTaylor Gronau 
City Administrator 

Riek AlniiellJenelle Teppen 
City Administrator 

Kell y Steele 
City AElniinistretar 

Patrick Hentges 
City Manager 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Economic Dc'•elopmen1 Services Agreement 
Sen•ing 1hc grtatcr A·ftmkato Regional A-farketplact. 

fX1ge 80/9 



City of North Mankato 

Mark Dehen Date 
Mayor 

City of Saint Peter 

+im01h~· SIFana Chuck Zieman Date 
Mayor 

Greater Mankato Growth, Inc. 

GFeg ~111eheFTodd Loosbrock Date 
Chair - Board of Directors 

~7/1 &12016 <MoshOcd ()(,.,'0>112016 \ ers1onl 

John Harrenstein Date 
City Administrator 

Todd Prafke Date 
City Administrator 

Jonathan G. Zierdt Date 
President & CEO 

l:.Conomlc /)C\'Clopmcnt Serwces Agreement 
Senw1g the gremcr Mankato Regional Marketplace 

pagc9o/9 



Blue Earth County 65620 58118 1.291% 66,467.04 67,325.01 68,194.05 69,074.32 69,965.95 
Amboy city 531 554 -0.415% 528.80 526.60 524.41 522.24 520.07 

Eagle Lake city 2779 1974 4.078% 2,892.33 3,010.28 3,133.04 3,260.80 3,393.78 
Good Thunder city 555 573 -0.314% 553.26 551.52 549.79 548.06 546.34 

lake Crystal city 2546 2536 0.039% 2,547.00 2,548.01 2,549.01 2,550.02 2,551.02 
Madison lake city 1137 888 2.804% 1,168.88 1,201.66 1,235.35 1,269.99 1,305.60 

Mapleton city 1760 1659 0.609% 1,770.71 1,781.50 1,792.34 1,803.25 1,814.23 
Pemberton city 246 246 0.000% 246.00 246.00 246.00 246.00 246.00 
Sa int Clair city 865 807 0.719% 871.22 877.48 883.78 890.14 896.53 

Skyline city 290 313 -0.735% 287.87 285.75 283.65 281.57 279.50 
Vernon Center city 323 342 -0.556% 321.21 319.42 317.65 315.88 314.13 

Mankato city 41202 34597 1.909% 41,988.60 42,790.21 43,607.13 44,439.65 45,288.05 
le Sueur County 

le Sueur city 4073 4230 -0.371% 4,057.88 4,042.82 4,027.82 4,012.87 3,997.97 
Kasota city 671 695 -0.345% 668.68 666.37 664.07 661.78 659.49 

Nicollet County 33350 31147 0.707% 33,585.88 33,823.43 34,062.66 34,303.58 34,546.21 
Courtland city 619 569 0.879% 624.44 629.93 635.46 641.05 646.68 

Lafayette city 486 531 -0.847% 481.88 477.80 473.75 469.73 465.75 
Nicollet city 1116 967 1.541% 1,133.20 1,150.66 1,168.39 1,186.39 1,204.67 

Saint Peter city 11758 10401 1.305% 11,911.40 12,066.81 12,224.24 12,383.73 12,545.30 

North Mankato city 13610 12489 0.898% 13,732.16 13,855.42 13,979.79 14,105.27 14,231.87 

Methodology 

The most recent population estimates from the state demographer are utilized to have a baseline population for each of the 

jurisdictions. A 10 year annual average growth rate ls used to project population growth. Participation fees are based up on the 
projected/estimated population for the prior year. 

Example 

As of today (May 2, 2016) the most currently available population estimate from the State Demographer is 2014 population 
estimates. For projecting 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 a growth rate is applied to the 2014 population. The 2017 participation fee is 

based upon the population in 2016. 

Notes 
State Demographer estimates are annually released in July each year for the previous year. 

$35,934.63 $36,355.50 $36,824.79 $37,300.13 $37,781.61 

$6,358.97 $6,592.51 $6,861.35 $7,141.16 $7,432.38 

$5,563.42 $5,580.14 $5,582.34 $5,584.54 $5,586.74 

$2,566.88 

$183,994.66 $187,421.13 $190,999.23 $194,645.65 $198,361.68 

$8,852.04 $8,853.78 $8,820.92 $8,788.18 $8,755.56 

$18,114.02 $18,264.65 $18,393.84 $18,523.94 $18,654.95 

$26,015.70 $26,426.32 $26,771.09 $27,120.37 $27,474.21 

$30,028.10 $30,343.37 $30,615.73 $30,890.53 $31,167.80 

$317,428.42 $319,837.40 $324,869.29 $329,994.SO $335,214.93 



JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
REGARDING THE GREATER MANKATO REGIONAL MARKETPLACE 

THIS JOINT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
REGARDING THE GREATER MANKATO REGIONAL MARKETPLACE (this "Agreement") 
is made and entered into this __ day of 2016, by and among Greater Mankato Growth, 
Inc. and the governmental entities listed herein under the heading "Definition of Greater Mankato 
Regional Marketplace" and who execute this Agreement (collectively "cities and counties" or in the 
singular a "city or county") 

WHAT WE AGREE TO 

Purpose 

It has become broadly accepted, embraced and understood that economic prosperity and activities do not stop 
at jurisdictional boundaries. Rather our economic and community prosperity lies in the success of our 
collective marketplace. 

For this reason, the patties wish to facilitate economic development of the communities that make up the 
Greater Mankato Regional Marketplace. This endeavor will offer a "forum to strategically facilitate 
individual and regional assets and opp0ttunities" for the purpose of business development and will enable us 
to enhance our future economic prosperity. 

Guiding Principles 

• economic prosperity- economic prosperity and continued strategic development and redevelopment are 
goals common to the interest of our individual entities, with regional economic prosperity strengthening 
all communities 

• atmosphere of cooperation - to promote an atmosphere of cooperation in pursuit of economic 
development in the Greater Mankato area, while seeking to ensure a cooperative and equitable approach 
to development of the cities and counties 

• unique strengths and characteristics - we must foster relationships which allow contribution of our 
individual expettise toward the common goal and promote the individual strengths and unique 
characteristics of each entity to best match potential development prospects with sites and services to fit 
their needs 

• direct technical assistance - cities and counties will provide the direct development assistance 
necessary in potential facility siting, improvements and public financing, and will work to provide a 
smooth transition from the development and marketing effort to the ultimate acquisition of a site/facility 
for a development prospect 

• efficient and effective delivery - successful economic development processes and marketing can best be 
achieved through cooperative effotts focused on increasing the tax base, growing the economy, and 
providing employment in the Greater Mankato Regional Marketplace. 

• supportive - our work is both passive and active, providing general market expertise, analytics and 
information consistently and constantly; and when a specific development opportunity arises will 
actively focus and customize such business and community intelligence. 

07/18/2016 (modified 06/08/2016 version) 

Economic Development Se11,ices Agreeme/11 
Serving the greater ,\fankato Regional ,\larketplace 

page I of8 



Definition of Greater Mankato Regional Marketplace 

In December, 2008 the Federal Government designated Mankato - North Mankato as a Metropolitan 
Statistical Area (MSA), including all of Blue Eatih and Nicollet counties. The Greater Mankato Regional 
Marketplace has included the MSA as well as those communities immediately adjacent having a historical 
relationship. 

Consistent with this designation, the patiies as communities within that geography wish to participate in this 
Agreement, and further acknowledges there may be additional communities outside of and adjacent to this 
geography that we collectively agree are integral to the marketplace. 

The cities, counties and government entities patiicipating in this revised Agreement (original agreement 
dated September 2009) are as follows: 

• Blue Eatih County 
• Nicollet County 
• City of Eagle Lake 
• City of Lake Crystal 
• City ofLeSueur 
• City of Mankato 
• City ofNotih Mankato 
• City of Saint Peter 
• Region Nine Development Commission (advisory only, unless fiscal patiicipation) 

General Context and Parameters of the Parties Obligations 

Greater Mankato Growth, Inc. 's (GMG) principal responsibility under this Agreement is to provide, 
marketing effotis (as described herein) relating to economic development of the overall regional 
marketplace, cities, and counties, including the development and implementation of programs that identify 
and support expansions and new business in the community and region, whether from firms currently 
operating locally or through recruitment of new enterprises. In carrying out its responsibility, GMG agrees 
to serve as the primary contact for expanding and locating private sector firms. This includes all prospects 
whether or not they are derived directly from the development and marketing programs established by GMG 
and this Agreement. Participants of this Agreement acknowledge economic development is a collaborative 
endeavor and understand GMG does not itself have all the necessary resources (i.e. sites, buildings or 
financial resources) available for projects, but rather will serve as a facilitator, working with the parties 
and/or providers of these resources to best serve the need of new, expanding or locating companies. 

The cities and counties are responsible for the execution of their municipal regulatory duties and provision 
of public services in support of local economic development. The cities and counties agree to administer 
their individual economic development programs and initiatives, business permit/licensing functions in a 
manner that encourages business expansion and new business statis consistent with their responsibility to 
protect the health and safety of local residents. Further, the cities and counties agree to the extent practical, 
to coordinate their infrastructure development and redevelopment programs with the needs of expanding and 
locating businesses. 

07/18/2016 (modified 06/08/20! 6 version) 

Economic Development Sen•ices Agreement 
Sen•ing the greater ,\1ankato Regional 1\Iarketplace 

page 2 of 8 



STRATEGIC Focus OF THE PARTIES 

Objective & Strategic Areas 

To retain and grow the economic base of the Greater Mankato Regional Marketplace. 

1) Business Retention 
To retain and expand the existing business base, and includes such activities as conducting 
regular business visits (i.e. Grow Minnesota! Visits), and facilitating resources and services for 
expansion or other business development assistance. 

2) New Enterprise & Emerging Business Development 
To nurture the development of entrepreneurial and new enterprise activity by assisting and 
serving as a resource for connecting such to the extensive business development resources and 
tools available in or connected to the regional marketplace (e.g., Small Business Development 
Center). 

3) New Business Development 
To attract non-local businesses to the marketplace through proactive marketing and recruiting 
strategies, as well as supporting and facilitating responses to development opportunities from 
businesses that approach/contact the cities, counties or GMG. 

The Business Development Process 

Expansion of existing businesses: 

I) Substantive expansion requests from an existing business may happen directly between the business 
and its current city or county or between the business and GMG. 

a. If the city or county is contacted directly by the business, GMG will be involved if 
determined necessary by the paities, but at minimum will be kept informed by the applicable 
city or county. 

b. If GMG is contacted by the business, GMG will first be an advocate and facilitator for 
expansion within the existing city or county and will coordinate with the city or county to 
assist with such. 

c. If a business directly contacts a city or county in which it is not currently located, the 
contacted city or county will inform either the existing host city or county of the business as 
well as GMG. 

2) If the city or county in which the business currently exists is not able to meet the business' facility or 
expansion needs, then GMG will facilitate exploration of alternative considerations with other 
entities. (Note: consistent with the guiding principles of the parties contained in this Agreement, 
cities and counties will not engage in relocating a business from one city or county to another but 
rather provide proposals when GMG invites such). 

Locating businesses into the area from outside of the regional marketplace: 

1) GMG will act as an advocate for the cities and counties in the marketing and recruitment of new 
businesses and will coordinate closely with the staff of each entity to reflect the opportunities of each 
as desired. 

07/18/20! 6 {modified 06/08/2016 version) 

Economic Development S'ervices Agreement 
Sen'ing /he greater . .\Jankato Regional ,Harketplace 

page 3 o/8 



2) GMG will receive prospects resulting from its business development and marketing efforts and 
programs, as well as the Minnesota Depa1iment of Employment and Economic Development 
(DEED) or other development entities, and will inform the cities and counties of the specified 
development criteria of the potential new business. Those cities and counties will then have the 
opp01iunity to assemble a competitive proposal through a standardized and coordinated process to 
attract the business. 

GMG and its staff shall serve as the primary point of contact in facilitating DEED, site selector, and 
other business location specialists. Staff will gather as much information and clarity as possible 
related to the development inquiry and its viability, in order to allow development response to be as 
thorough as possible. 

3) At the time a city or county is selected by a business, the entity and business will discuss and finalize 
incentives and the locating of the business. 

Economic Development Marketing, Communication and Program Services 

GMG's economic development marketing and communications strategy and responsibilities will be as 
follows: 

• Marketing and Communications: 

GMG will develop a comprehensive marketing and communications plan, updated as needed 
with input from the cities and counties. The plan will market the collective strengths of the 
regional marketplace as a site for growing or expanding an existing business or locating potential 
businesses, organizations and site selectors from outside and within the regional marketplace. 
The plan will include goals, objectives and a comprehensive strategy for communicating to key 
audiences with consistent messaging and the most effective tactics that make the best use of our 
collective marketing resources. Tactics that may be considered in this plan include, but are not 
limited to: adve1iising, digital, social media, news releases, relationship marketing, special events 
and direct mail. GMG will provide periodic reports on the achievement of the objectives outlined 
in this plan. 

GMG will continually redesign and retool its website to remain business development centric and 
as such will continue to be positioned as a one stop, comprehensive location that site selectors 
and organizations can visit to learn about the collective assets of the marketplace and individual 
strengths of the cities and counties. 

GMG will maintain website interface and tools (e.g., Location One Information Systems - LOIS) 
designed to provide efficient means for each of the cities and counties, as well as other property 
owners and agents, to update their information on available properties on-line, thereby creating a 
comprehensive area-wide inventory. This information will be available on the Greater Mankato 
Growth web site and others (e.g., MN DEED website, MNCAR, etc.) providing greater visibility 
to site selectors and organizations who might consider building or expanding their business 
anywhere in our regional marketplace. 

GMG will work with the cities, counties and other entities a part of or related to this agreement to 
establish links to GMG tools and resources. 

• GMG will maintain copies of closed or pending project files or other mechanisms, enabling the cities 
and counties to be advised of the ongoing business development opportunities resulting from its 
economic development marketing and communications effo1is. 

07/18/20 l 6 (modified 06/08/20!6 version) 

Eco110111ic De1'elop111e111 Sen•ices Agreemenl 
Se111i11g the greater 1\iankato Regional 1\'1arketplace 

page 4 of8 



• Program Services: 

GMG will facilitate initiatives targeted at retaining and growing existing businesses, including an 
annual program of company visits for the purpose of assessing individual and area business needs 
as well as identifying potential development and expansion opportunities. These visits will be 
coordinated with the primary city or county in which the business is located. 

GMG, in support of business development and with respect to the balance of membership 
offerings versus general economic development offerings, will continue to bring to the regional 
economic development strategy initiatives and programming that have a direct impact on the 
development of business. Such initiatives may include: assist with site readiness programs 
and/or initiatives; talent fulfillment work; improving connections to development resources (e.g., 
Higher Education); interaction and relationship with the Ag Business EpiCenter initiative; while 
not leading, being cognizant of and facilitating sharing on common community development 
elements (e.g. housing); and further development of an annual regional economic development 
summit. 

• This Agreement and the development process apply to economic development and marketing 
services related to the primary economy including job creating service sector businesses. Consumer 
brick and mortar retail development are not encompassed as the chief focus in this Agreement; 
however, GMG can provide a platform for supporting and showcasing the communities' 
oppo1tunities and assets. GMG will assist as able with the development and redevelopment of the 
central place functions of each of the cities (e.g. housing, main street businesses). Each of the cities 
and counties will continue to be the primary entity responsible for guiding commercial and 
professional service sector development or overall redevelopment in their respective city or county. 

• GMG will provide the cities and counties with an annual report, providing outcomes and impact from 
the previous year. 

FI"1ANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AND ADVISORY COMMITTE!c 

Financial 

The cities and counties agree to share in funding and payment of the economic development services 
described in this Agreement with Greater Mankato Growth, Inc. Accordingly, each City and County agrees 
to pay Greater Mankato Growth, Inc. on an annual basis, which shall be invoiced by Greater Mankato 
Growth, Inc., that amount set fo1th in Addendum I which describes the funding calculation/amounts). 

Given the variance of services and activity relative to a municipalities size and role (city compared to 
county), a diversified per capita rate structure has evolved over time and shall be as follows going forward: 

• $4.38 I capita- City of Mankato 
• $2.19 I capita - all cities with a population greater than 2,000 
• $0.54 I capita - County (on total population) * 

*Cities with a population of less than 2,000 are not apt to derive similar value or participate in the 
same fashion as those with a population exceeding 2, 000 and having a direct investment of time and 
dollars. However, all participants in this Agreement acknowledge there may be specific instances 
identified where REDA services will be helpful to one of these cities, on an ad hoc basis when requested, 
and thereby the regional marketplace. As a result, County investments are calculated on total 

07/18/2016 (modified 06/08/2016 version) 

Economic Development Sen>ices i/greeme/1/ 
Sen,ing the greater 1\1anka10 Regional ,\1arkerp!ace 

page 5 of8 



population to allow for such interaction and service (services will be coordinated with and as 
appropriate done in collaboration with Region Nine Development Commission). Additionally, all cities 
within a participating County will be (a) invited to participate in REDA 's annual summit, and (b) will be 
included in the distribution of the monthly REDA Report. 

Governance 

Greater Mankato Growth, Inc. Board of Directors 

• A representative of the cities and counties (selected as provided below) will be an ex officio 
Director(s) with full voting rights and privileges. One(!) such ex-officio Director will be added for 
the first six (6) cities and counties, and two (2) ex-officio Directors added ifthere are seven (7) or 
more cities and counties. 

Advisory Committee 

• The cities and counties will establish an Advisory Committee. The Advisory Committee will be 
comprised of a GMO board member and one governmental member from each of the cities and 
counties along with the appropriate staff participant for each. 

• The Advisory Committee will select a Chair and Vice-Chair for meeting administration (since the 
City of Mankato has an ex-officio seat with full voting rights on the Greater Mankato Growth, Inc. 
Board of Directors, it shall not be considered for either of these positions). 

• This Advisory Committee will meet on an as needed basis to discuss issues related, but not limited 
to, inviting additional entities beyond the initial cities and counties to join the Advisory Committee 
and/or become parties to this Agreement, funding and amendments to this Agreement. 

"Staff" Operating Interaction 

In addition to regular interaction between the cities and counties and Greater Mankato Growth staff, GMO 
will facilitate monthly meetings of the "economic development staff' of the cities and counties to discuss 
business prospects, share information on pending economic development projects, develop appropriate 
responses, and provide updates. 

Term, Termination and Prior Agreements 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the I" day of January 2017 and continue until the 3 I ;t day of 
December 2019. Notwithstanding the forgoing, any party may terminate this Agreement annually before the 
end of the calendar year by providing ninety (90) days advance written notice to the other patties. Additional 
government entities may be added, at any time, as patties to this Agreement with the written consent of the 
all the cities, counties and entities then patties to this Agreement and upon execution of a document pursuant 
to which such additional person agrees to be bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

Unless terminated sooner, this Agreement will automatically renew for an additional one-year term, and any 
per capita fee increases will be mutually agreed upon by all patties. 

When executed by the parties this Agreement will supersede and replace the existing Joint Economic 
Development Services Agreement dated January I, 2013 - December 31, 2016. 

07/18/2016 (modified 06/08/2016 version) 

Economic Development Sen•ices Agreement 
Serl'ing the greater ,\kmkaro Regional ;\1arketplace 

page 6 o/8 



Miscellaneous 

This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties and supersede all prior 
agreements. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Minnesota. This Agreement may be executed in several counterpa1ts, including facsimile 
counterpatts, and signatures, each of which shall be deemed to be an original copy, all of which together 
shall constitute one Agreement binding on all parties hereto, notwithstanding that all parties shall not have 
signed the same counterparts. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed as of the date set forth opposite a parties 
signature. 

Blue Earth County 

Kip Bruender Date 
Chair - Board of Commissioners 

Nicollet County 

Bruce Beatty Date 
Chair - Board of Commissioners 

City of Eagle Lake 

Tim Auringer Date 
Mayor 

City of Lake Crystal 

Brad Ahrenstorff Date 
Mayor 

City of Lesueur 

Robert Broeder Date 
Mayor 

07/18/2016 (modified 06/08/2016 version) 

Robert W. Meyer Date 
County Administrator 

Ryan Krosch Date 
County Administrator 

Brad Potter Date 
City Administrator 

Taylor Gronau Date 
City Administrator 

Jenelle Teppen Date 
City Administrator 

Economic Development Sen,ices Agreement 
Serl'ing the gremer Afankato Regional A1arketplace 

page 7 of8 



City of Mankato 

Eric Anderson Date 
Mayor 

City of North Mankato 

Mark Dehen Date 
Mayor 

City of Saint Peter 

Chuck Zieman Date 
Mayor 

Greater Mankato Growth, Inc. 

Todd Loosbrock Date 
Chair - Board of Directors 

0711812016 (modified 06/08/2016 version) 

Patrick Hentges Date 
City Manager 

John Harrenstein Date 
City Administrator 

Todd Prafke Date 
City Administrator 

Jonathan G. Zierdt Date 
President & CEO 

Economic Developmenr Services Agreeme11/ 
Se11,ing the greater 1\Iankato Regional . .\1arketplace 

page 8 of 8 



Blue Earth County 65620 58118 1.291% 66,467.04 67,325.01 68,194.05 69,074.32 69,965.95 
Amboy city S31 SS4 -0.415% 528.80 526.60 524.41 522.24 520.07 

Eagle Lake city 2779 1974 4.078% 2,892.33 3,010.28 3,133.04 3,260.80 3,393.78 
Good Thunder city SSS S73 -0.314% 553.26 551.52 549.79 548.06 546.34 

Lake Crystal city 2546 2536 0.039% 2,547.00 2,548.01 2,549.01 2,550.02 2,551.02 
Madison Lake city 1137 888 2.804% 1,168.88 1,201.66 1,235.35 1,269.99 1,305.60 

Mapleton city 1760 1659 0.609% 1,770.71 1,781.50 1,792.34 1,803.25 1,814.23 

Pemberton city 246 246 0.000% 246.00 246.00 246.00 246.00 246.00 
Saint Clair city 86S 807 0.719% 871.22 877.48 883.78 890.14 896.53 

Skyline city 290 313 -0.735% 287.87 285.75 283.65 281.57 279.50 

Vernon Center city 323 342 -0.556% 321.21 319.42 317.65 315.88 314.13 
Mankato city 41202 34597 1.909% 41,988.60 42,790.21 43,607.13 44,439.65 45,288.051 

Le Sueur County 
Le Sueur city 4073 4230 -0.371% 4,057.88 4,042.82 4,027.82 4,012.87 3,997.971 

Kasota city 671 69S -0.345% 668.68 666.37 664.07 661.78 659.49 

Nicollet County 33350 31147 0.707% 33,585.88 33,823.43 34,062.66 34,303.58 34,546.21! 

Courtland city 619 S69 0.879% 624.44 629.93 635.46 641.05 646.68 

Lafayette city 486 S31 -0.847% 481.88 477.80 473.75 469.73 465.75 

Nicollet city 1116 967 1.541% 1,133.20 1,150.66 1,168.39 1,186.39 1,204.67 

Sa int Peter city 11758 10401 1.305% 11,911.40 12,066.81 12,224.24 12,383.73 12,S4S.301 
North Mankato city 13610 12489 0.898% 13,732.16 13,855.42 13,979.79 14,105.27 14,231.87 

Methodology 

The most recent population estimates from the state demographer are utilized to have a baseline population for each of the 
jurisdictions. A 10 year annual average growth rate is used to project population growth. Participation fees are based up on the 

projected/estimated population for the prior year. 

Example 

As of today (May 2, 2016) the most currently available population estimate from the State Demographer is 2014 population 

estimates. For projecting 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 a growth rate is applied to the 2014 population. The 2017 participation fee is 

based upon the population in 2016. 

Notes 
State Demographer estimates are annually released in July each year for the previous year. 

$35,934.63 $36,355.50 $36,824.79 $37,300.13 $37,781.61 

$6,358.97 $6,592.51 $6,861.35 $7,141.16 $7,432.38 

$5,563.42 $5,580.14 $5,582.34 $5,584.54 $5,586.74 

$2,566.88 

$183,994.66 : $187,421.13 $190,999.23 $194,645.65 $198,361.68 

$8,852.04 ! $8,853.78 $8,820.92 $8,788.18 $8,755.56 

$18,114.02 j $18,264.65 $18,393.84 $18,523.94 $18,654.95 

$26,015.70 $26,426.32 $26,771.09 $27,120.37 $27,474.21 

$30,028.10 $30,343.37 $30,615.73 $30,890.53 $31,167.80 

$317,428.42 $319,837.40 $324,869.29 $329,994.50 $33S,214.93 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item : # !OB llDe partment: Administration llCounc il M eeting Date: I 0/17/1 6 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Resolution Creating the Rental Density Advisory Group. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: On September 6, 2016 City Council passed 
Ordinance No. 80 Fourth Series An Ordinance of the City of North Mankato, Minnesota, Amending North 
Mankato City Code, Chapter 151 Residential Rental Property Licensing Code. At that time Council requested 
the creation of a Rental Density Advisory Group to advise the City Administrator, Community Development 
Director, Chief of Police and City Council regarding the goals and objectives of Ordinance No. 80. 

If addiliona/ space is required, allach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Adopt Resolution Creating the Rental Density Advisory Group. 

For Clerk's Use: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

ITJ CJ CJ CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

____ Freyberg Other (specify) 

----Spears 
Steiner ----
Norland -- - -
Dehen ----

CJ workshop CJ Refer to: 

ITJ Regular Meeting CJ Table until: 

CJ Special Meeting CJ Other: 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION CREATING THE RENTAL DENSITY ADVISORY GROUP 
 

 WHEREAS, chapter four of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan of North Mankato 
calls for advancement of the goal to “Maintain residential properties to a high standard while 
encouraging redevelopment opportunities; and   

 
 WHEREAS, a policy recommendation of that goal was to “Consider a policy that 

permits a limited number of rental units in a specific area to minimize turnover of owner 
occupied single family homes to rental units within established neighborhoods”; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council acted on these goals and policy recommendations in 

2016 with revisions to Chapter 151 of the city code regulating Residential Rental Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council requests a Rental Density Advisory Group be formed 

to provide feedback to the City Council on the effectiveness of the revisions to Chapter 151 to 
ensure rental density limits achieve the best living environment possible for both homeowners 
and renters ; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF NORTH MANKATO, MINNESOTA,  
 
1. Creation & Name:  A Rental Density Advisory Group is hereby established. 
 
2.  Membership:  The Rental Density Advisory Group shall be comprised of six members that 
include two homeowners, one renter, one landlord, one rental management professional, and one 
realtor. All must be citizens of North Mankato, Minnesota 
 
3.  Term: The advisory group shall meet for a period of twenty four months.     
 
4.  Purpose: The Rental Density Advisory Group is to advise the City Administrator, Community 
Development Director, Chief of Police and City Council regarding the goals and objectives of 
the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the Rental Density Study as they relate specifically to 
maintaining residential properties to a high standard while encouraging redevelopment 
opportunities and as to how the revisions of Chapter 151 of the city code adopted in 2016 are 
ensuring rental density limits achieve the best living environment possible for both homeowners 
and renters.  In addition, the Advisory Group should review proposed changes to the 
enforcement standards for rental properties.   
 
5.  Initial Appointment and Terms:  
 

• Homeowner – Christine Good, 24 month term, beginning at adoption of resolution 
• Homeowner – Jim Mongeau, 24 month term, beginning at adoption of resolution 
• Renter – Ryan Gustafson, 24 month term, beginning at adoption of resolution 
• Landlord – John Baker, 24 month term, beginning at adoption of resolution 
• Rental Management Professional – Sarah Collins, 24 month term, beginning at adoption 

of resolution 
• Realtor – Jack Kolars, 24 month term, beginning at adoption of resolution 



 
 
Adopted by the City Council this 17th day of October 2016. 
 

________________________________ 
Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item : #l OC llDepartment: F inance llCounc il Meeting D ate: 10/ 17/ 16 I 
TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Resolution Adopting Debt Management Policy. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: The creation of a debt management policy was 
identified in the City of North Mankato Strategic Plan adopted by Council on November 17, 2014. Finance 
Director McCann will answer questions concerning the policy. 

If additional space is required, al/ach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Adopt Debt Management Policy 

For Clerk's Use: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

UJ CJ CJ CJ CJ 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

____ Freyberg Other (specify) 

----Spears 
Steiner ----
Norland ----
Dehen ----

C=:J Workshop L=:J Refer to: 

UJ Regular Meeting L=:J Table unti l: 

C=:J Special Meeting L=:J Other: 



RESOLUTION NO 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

WHEREAS, the North Mankato City Council recognizes the need to adopt a Debt Management Policy; 

and 

WHEREAS, said policy will provide guidance for the types of debt issued, the issuance process and the 

administration of the debt portfolio, and; 

WHEREAS, said policy is intended to guide decisions, identify policy goals, and demonstrate a 

commitment to financial planning. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH MANKATO, 

MINNESOTA: 

SECTION 1. The City of North Mankato, Minnesota hereby adopts by Resolution, the attached Debt 

Management Policy. 

SECTION 2. This Resolution shall be in effect immediately from and after its passage and approval. 

Adopted by the City Council this 17th day of October 2016. 

Mayor 

ATIEST: 

City Clerk 



PURPOSE 

CITY OF NORTH MANKA TO, MN 
DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The use of borrowing and the issuance of debt is an important and flexible revenue source 
available to the City of North Mankato. The issuance of debt is a mechanism which allows 
capital improvements to proceed when necessary and in advance of when it may otherwise be 
feasible. It can reduce long-term costs due to inflation, prevent lost opportunities, and equalize 
the costs of improvements to present and future property owners and customers of the City. 

Debt management is an integral part of the financial management of the City. Adequate 
financial resources must be provided for the repayment of debt, and the level of debt incurred 
by the City must be effectively controlled to amounts that are manageable and within levels that 
will maintain and/or enhance the City's credit rating. A goal of debt management is to stabilize 
the overall debt burden and future tax levy requirements to ensure that issued debt can be 
repaid and prevent default on any municipal debt. A debt level which is too high places a 
financial burden on taxpayers and can create challenges for the local economy as a whole. 

POLICY STATEMENT 

Fiscally prudent and managed use of debt provides financial and operating advantages. 
Extensive use of debt places a burden on the fiscal resources of the City and its taxpayers. The 
following guidelines provide a framework and limit on debt utilization: 

1. The City will restrict long-term borrowing to planned capital improvements, as included 
in the City's Ten Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), and a limited use of short-term 
debt for capital outlay and acquisition. 

1. The City will not use long-term debt for current operations. 

2. The City will strive to maintain a "pay-as-you-go" capital funding policy, supporting 
capital spending without use of debt whenever appropriate and feasible. 

3. The City will pay back debt within a period not to exceed the expected useful life of the 
projects. 

4. The City will maintain good communications with bond rating agencies regarding its 
financial condition. The City will follow a policy of full disclosure in every financial 
report and bond disclosure document. 

5. When feasible the City will use refunding mechanisms to reduce interest cost and 
evaluate the use of debt reserves to lower overall annual debt service where possible. 

z:\policies\north mankato debt management policy.docx 1 



6. During the annual budget process, a debt analysis will be prepared in conjunction with 
the Capital Improvement Plan to provide information about the City's debt structure. 
The annual debt study shall include at a minimum: 

a. Future estimated total debt outstanding, both existing debt and new debt 
issuance plans, by type of debt (general obligation, revenue, etc.) 

b. Annual estimated source of revenue by type (i.e., property tax levy, special 
assessments, utility revenue, etc.) for payment of debt service (principal and 
interest), both existing debt and new debt issuance plans 

z:\policies\north mankato debt management policy.docx 2 



CITY OF NORTH MANKATO 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

!Agenda Item: #1 00 llDepartment: Finance llCouncil Meeting Date: 10117I16 
I 

TITLE OF ISSUE: Consider Resolution Adopting Investment Policy. 

BACKGROUND AND SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: The creation of an investment policy was identified 
in the City of North Mankato Strategic Plan adopted by Council on November 17, 2014. Finance Director 
McCann will answer questions concerning the policy. 

If additional space is required, al/ach a separate sheet 

REQUESTED COUNCIL ACTION: Adopt Investment Policy 

For Clerk's Use: SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ATTACHED 

Motion By: Resolution Ordinance Contract Minutes Map 
Second By: 

ITJ c=i L=:J c=i c=i 
Vote Record: Aye Nay 

----Freyberg Other (specify) 

----Spears 
Steiner ----
Norland ----
Dehen ----

L=i Workshop c=i Refer to: 

ITJ Regular Meeting c=i Table until: 

L=i Special Meeting c=i Other: 



RESOLUTION NO 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING INVESTEMENT POLICY 

WHEREAS, the North Mankato City Council recognizes that effective investing is essential to good fiscal 

management; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council realizes the need to adopt an investment policy for the City of North 

Mankato, Minnesota. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH MANKATO, 

MINNESOTA: 

SECTION 1. That the investment policy, more fully described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a 

part hereof, is hereby adopted as the official investment policy of the City of North Mankato, 

Minnesota. 

SECTION 2. This Resolution shall be in effect immediately from and after its passage and approval. 

Adopted by the City Council this 17th day of October 2016. 

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 



City of North Mankato - Investment Policy 

Safety: is the first investment objective. Investment options shall be considered in a 
manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of the principal. To obtain this objective, 
diversification is to be considered in the type of investment, maturity and the investment 
institution where the investment is located. For checking accounts and savings accounts 
collateral may be required. Such collateral requirements will be monitored on a monthly 
basis. Certificates of deposit will not be purchased beyond the FDIC limitations on insurance 
of said certificates. 

Liquidity: is the second investment objective to be considered. The investment portfolio 
must remain sufficiently liquid to enable the City to meet its cash flow requirements as may 
be reasonably anticipated. Liquidity in the face of changing market conditions will also be a 
consideration in determining the term of any investment purchased. Criteria consisting of 
liquidity target ranges of cash and investments maturing within one year at 40% or more of 
portfolio, investments maturing within 1 to 3 years is 35% or less of portfolio, and 
investments maturing within 3 to 5 years is 25% or less of portfolio. These criteria will be 
periodically reviewed to determine the appropriate proportions of the portfolio invested at 
less than one year, one to three years and three to five years. The maximum maturity 
authorized for investment is five years from the date of purchase unless otherwise 
authorized by the City Council. The City's liquidity will be reviewed on a monthly basis to 
enable the City to meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements. 

The Return on the Investment: is the third investment objective. The investment 
portfolio should be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return through 
the budgetary and economic cycles taking into constraints of risk and cash flow 
characteristics of the investment portfolio. 

The city's Investment policy and practices will conform to Minnesota Statutes 118A. 
Management of the City's investment activity is delegated to the City Administrator or 
designee. No person ill engage in an investment transaction on behalf of the City's except 
as provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures established to maintain this 
program. 

Employees and other city officials involved in the investment process shall refrain from 
personal business activity that could conflict with the City's investment program or could 
reasonably expect the public to question or doubt the ability to make impartial, objective 
investment decisions. Any such conflict or potential conflicts must be declared to the City 
Administrator as soon as such conflict or potential conflict is known. The City Council will 
annually approve the financial institutions or broker/dealers authorized to provide 
investment services. All broker/dealers providing investment services shall have a Broker 
Certification form properly completed annually and on file with the City. 

z:\policies\investment policy.docx 
1 

Exhibit A



Investment authorized and permitted by this policy are as follows: 

• United States Securities including governmental bonds, notes, bills, 
mortgages and other securities which are direct obligations or are 
guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its 
instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress ( e.g. U.S. 
Treasury bills, Federal Home Loan Bank Notes, other government backed 
securities, etc.). 

• Minnesota Joint Powers Investment Trust agreements or contracts for shares 
of a Minnesota joint powers investment trust whose investments are 
restricted to securities authorized for investment by the City and shares of an 
investment company registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1940, 
whose shares are registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933, as long 
as the investment company receives the highest credit rating and is rated in 
one of the two highest risk categories by at least one nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization and is invested in financial instruments with a 
final maturity of no longer than 13 months (e.g. the Minnesota Municipal 
Money Market ( 4M Fund). 

• State and local government obligations including any security that is a 
general obligation of any state of local government with taxing powers rated 
"A" or is a revenue obligation of any state or local government with is rated 
"AA" or better by a national bond rating service. 

• Commercial paper issued by a United States Corporation or their Canadian 
subsidiary that are rated in the highest quality category by at least two 
nationally recognized rating agencies. The rating of such commercial paper 
is referred to as "AlPl". 

• Time deposits/certificate of deposits fully insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation. 

Investment transactions are to be documented by the City's finance department. 
Investment confirmations are received from banks and/or brokers for each 
transaction. The finance department maintains all investment transactions on a 
monthly summary of cash and investments. Annual reports on composition of the 
investment portfolio (type, financial institution, yield, purchase and maturity dates, 
and amount invested) will be also be prepared. 

z:\policies\investment policy.docx 
2 


	Agenda #6. Approval of Council Budget Workshop Minutes.
	Agenda #7.	Approval of Council Minutes.
	Agenda #8A.	Bills and Appropriations.
	Agenda #8B.	Consider Adopting Resolution Approving Donations/Contributions/Grants.
	Agenda #8C.	Consider Approving Large Group and Audio Permit for the Catholic Order of Foresters Picnic at Spring Lake Park Shelter #1 on July 23, 2017 from 10:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.
	Agenda #8D.	Consider Approving Large Group and Audio Permit for the Fraternal Order of Eagles at Wheeler Park Indoor Shelter on July 16, 2017 from 11:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.
	Agenda #8E.	Consider Adopting Resolution Waiving Waiting Period for Exemption from Lawful Gambling License for LEEP on February 24, 2017 at Mankato Brewery.
	Agenda #8F.	Traffic and Safety Committee Meeting Minutes.
	Agenda #10A.	Consider Adopting Joint Economic Development Services Agreement Regarding the Greater Mankato Regional Marketplace.
	Agenda #10B.	Consider Adopting Resolution Creating the Rental Density Advisory Group.
	Agenda #10C.	Consider Resolution Adopting Debt Management Policy.
	Agenda #10

